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FOSTER’'S ANNOUNCES THE OUTCOMES FROM ITS WINE REVIEW

Wne business to be retamed and reshaped over t:me

Australian multi-beverage business to be separated into Wine and Beer
Glaobal supply operations to be integrated with demand regions

New and experienced leadership team o be appointed

Extensive operational performance improvement program to be implemented
Austraiian tail brand portfolio to be rationalised

Non-care vineyards lo be divested and winery network optimised

Over $100 million per annum in cost savings in F11

Foster's Group Limited (Foster's) today anncunced the cutcomes from a comprehensive
strategic and operational review of its Global Wine business (the Review).

Summary of key outcomes from the Review

« Fosters to retain and reshape its Wine business and implement significant
arganisational and operational change to imprave performance

« Ausfralian Wine and Beer, Cider & Spirits (BCS) divisions 10 be structurally
separated to provide greater management facus, arganisational simplicity,
financial transparency and performance accountability

s Global supply operations to be integrated with respective demand regions to
create end-to-end business units comprising sales, marketing, supply and
functional support

+« New and experienced operational leadership team to pursue performance
improvement initiatives identified by the Review
- Alex Stevens appointed Manéging Director of Australian BCS
- New Managing Directors of Australian Wine and Americas Wine to be

appointed in the near future
- Peter Jackson fo continue as Managing Director of EMEA Wine

« Sales force numbers to be increased in Australia to capture opportunities in both
Wine and BCS

s Overhead, procurement and manufacturing efficiency programs to be pursued to
aggressively reduce costs

« Wine brand portfalio to be reéhaped over time to focus on attraclive segments
starting with rationalisation of the Australian tail brand portfolio

« 36 non-core vineyards to be sold and 3 wineries to be closed, reconfigured or
consolidated in Australia and California
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+ Qverall operational benefits expected to exceed $100 million per annum in net
pre-tax cost savings in F11 afier allowing for additional investment in sales force
numbers and other costs ‘

= Total asset write downs and restructuring charges in the range of $330-415
million to be brought to account in HZ2 FO9 ($130-165 millien cash and $200-250
million non-cash) and approximately $60 million per annum of overheads to be
transferred from Australian BCS to Wine resulting from zatructural separation

Commenting on the Review, Foster's Chairman, David Crawford said:

“As part of the Review, the Foster's Board has considered the full range of
ownership, organisational and operational options. In light of the operational
opportunities available to improve performance, the Board has determined that.
shareholder value will be maximised by retaining the Wine business. The current
difficult conditions in debt and equity markets mean this is not the appropriate time {o
sell or demerge Foster's Wine business.

"The performance of our Wine business has been unsatisfactory. In large part this
has been the product of poor execution in the Americas and pursuing a multi-
beverage model in Australia. We are modifying our strategy and dramatically
changing how we operate the VWine business by installing a new management team
under the leadership of lan Johnston (CEO)".

Background on the Review

The Review was initiated in April 2008 as a result of unsatisfactory performance
following the acquisitions of Beringer and Southcorp, a period which had seen quality of
earnings deteriorate, competitive positions weaken and Foster's failing to achieve
required retumns fram its investment in Wine.

The Foster's Board has overseen the wark conducted internally by management through
the new CEQ, lan Johnstan. Specialist input was obtained from external advisors and
consuitants where requirad, and the analysis and overall findings have been reviewed
independently by Gresham Advisory, which has advised the Board.

The Review has been extensive and has included a comprehensive study of wine
industry structure, business strategy, organisational design, operational capabilities and
efficiencies, and economic and financial performance. The Review considered the
attractiveness and feasibility of a wide range of organic and inorganic options available
to Foster's.

Assessment of the Wine industry and Foster's Wine Business
The detailed analysis and findings of the Review are commercially sensitive, however at

a high-leve! the Review has concluded that while the global Wine industry is structurally
challenging it has robust growth dynamics and attractive market segments.
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The Review concluded that Foster's business is reasonably well positioned but has
failed to operate effectively in an industry where execution is particularly critical to
sSuccess.

The wine industry structure is challenged by several factors including low barmiers to
entry, viticultlure cycles, high asset intensily, increasing customer concentration, high
levels of private participation and foraign exchange dynamics.

Such challenges are mitigated to an extent by good long term growth prospects in most
new world wine markets. |n particular, the US market has strong underlying growth
potential driven by favourable demographics that will coniinue to increase wine
penetration and consumplion over time. The Australian market rermains in growth as
well as other attractive developed markeats. In addition, certain emerging markets will
provide |enger term opportunities to sustain growth.

Within the wine industry, Fosler’s is reasonably well positioned with its business
characterised as follows:

» Price points: Strong exposure in premium segments and well positioned in
attractive luxury seqgments aibeit underweight in the US. Minimal exposure fo
unattractive commercial segments (i.e. cask and jug)

e Varietals: Ovarweight in traditional, heavier style varietals with the opportunity to
increase exposure 1o lighter style and higher growth variatals

s Country of origin: Overweight in the Australian export category, relatively
balanced in the US domestic category while underweight in smaller, faster
growing countries of arigin

« Markelts: Well positioned in developed new world markets and emerging
markets, particularly Asia

= Channels: Strong exposure to retail while underweight in an-premise and direct
channels

« Brand partfolio: Strong brand portfolio in premium wine versus competitors with a
degree of overlap in Australian global brands

¢ Production footprint: Well configured, utilised and outsourced, except for
overweight position in lower quality vineyards mainly in Australia and California’s
Central Coast '

» OQperational synergies: Wine and BCS provide synergy apportunities in
distribution in Australia and back office overheads but limited overall

Fosters CEQ lan Jahnston said:

"An encouraging outcome from the Review is that most major wine markets exhibit
solid long term growth characteristics and the Foster's Wine business is well
positioned to pursue and grow its invalvement in the attractive segments of those
markets.
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“However, the Review has identified that poor executian and an ineffective
organisational structure and culture have adversely impacted operating perfformance.
The business has failed to keep pace with a dynamic market where execution is
critical. Innovation rates have been below market and the portfolio has not been
sufficiently adapted over time to take advantage of growth segments and mitigate
exposures within the markets in which we operate.”

Structural considerations

The Review identified that, other than in distribution and back office costs, the multi-.
beverage model adopted in Australia after the Southcorp acquisition has generally been
an ineffective go-to-market modei for Foster's combined partfolio. While steps had been
made to increase the number of specialised Wine resources within the current multi-
beverage sales force, a structural change is required to maximise performance.

Shareholder value will be improved by separating Wine and BCS in Australia. This is
expected to deliver improvements in sales force effectiveness, wine product knowledge,
customer coverage and service, promotional effectiveness, innovation rates and
employee engagement. Multi-beverage benefits in distribution and back office support
will be preserved.

The front-end structural reorganisation will involve:

» Separating Wine and BCS sales and marketing
~» Providing channel focus within the sales force (i.e. on and off premise)

+ Caentralising sales planning and operations and focusing field sales teams on
execution

« Increasing sales force numbers while reducing sales, marketing and functional
support overheads

s BCS reverting to the “Carlton & United Breweries” identity

= Wine to move farward under 2 new identity to be determined

« Appointing new experienced leadership for Australian Wine, Americas Wine and
Australian BCS

Foster’'s will be investing in additional sales force numbers in Australia. In aggregate,
the Australian Wine and BCS sales forces will increase by approximately 25% with
substantially mare dedicated sales representatives in Wine.

Global supply operations will be integrated with the demand regions over time to create
snd-to-end autonomous business units. Key changes include:

= Australian wine supply will be integrated with Australian Wine

» Californian wine supply will be integrated with Americas Wine

+ Global BCS supply will be integrated with Australian BCS

« Planning, procurement, distribution and certain other functions will continue to be
shared globally by Wine and BCS where appropriate

A oos
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“To best support the operational improvements, and to increase focus, simplicity,
transparency and accountability, the Australian Wine and BCS businesses will be
managed independently” Mr Johnsion said.

Foster's has concluded that it is not the appropriate time to restructure ownership of the
Wine businaess, whether through a full or partial sale or demerger. Detailed
consideration of all ownership and structural options was undertaken as part of the

Review. Key considerations in the decision to retain the Wine business at this time
included the:

+« Need to address poor operational paformiance in the business
=  Opportunity to pursue portfolio reshaping opportunities aver time

» Current poor state of capital markets (debt and equity) and deteriorating
economic conditions

It has been determined that shareholder value will be maximised by focusing on
implementing the organisational and operational initiatives identified by the Review.
These factors argue that a large scale and premature sale of Wine asseis would remave
shareholders’ ability to participate in future value creation.

Future strategy and portfolio of initiatives

Faster's future strategy will focus on implementing the Review cutcomes within a
broader transformation program facused on improving growth, efficiency and capability
across the Group. A summary of the key initialives to be pursued is set out below:

1. Growth — “dnive profitable growth”

» Separate Australian Wine and BCS, adopf a channekled modal, increase sales
force numbers and refocus the sales team on execution, enabling the removal of
large numbers of administration roles. These cost reduction apportunities
materially exceed the ¢ost of increasing the sales force

» Improve peformance in the Americas lhrough a sales excellence program to
increase customer facing time and new disciplines fo better [everage promotional
programs. A similar program is already underway in Australia

e Increase emphasis on Asia to focus on the growth potential in the region. Fiji
and Samoa BCS will be aligned with Australian BCS and New Zealand with
Australian Wine

= Place high priarity on innovation, leveraging market insight capability and
supenor wine making skills

» Focus on key Wine brands, supported by differentiated boutique brands
streamed to appropriate channels. A number of tail brands will be rationalised
and the Wine business will complete its withdrawal from the cask segment in
Australia

Foos
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Impiement ge-to-market strategies with integrated parifolio and channel
initiatives, developed to ieverage retailer and distributor resources

Capture direct route-to-market opportunities where appropriate, such as in the
Nordics where Fasters will assume direct responsibility for distribution

2. Efficiency — “be the Jowest cost operator”

Integrate supply operations with demand reqions to craate end-to-end business
units with increased accountability

Reduce input costs through varigus sirategic sourcing initiatives locally and
through leveraging Foster's global scale and more disciplined buying practices
Improve manufacturing efficiencias, particularly in canversion and packaging,
through Continuous Improvement programs

Cease low value added activities and increase simplicity of the organisation
struciure to enable the elimination of overhead roles which do not add value to
direct selling:and marketing processes

Implement a single ERP system across the Group to facilitate business process
improvement and organisational streamlining. Systems implementation has
commenced and is expected to be ¢ompleted in F11

Exit lower quality, non-core vineyards in Australia snd California

Optimise winery production foatprint by closing Denman in the Hunter Valley,
reconfiguring St Helena in the Napa Valley and consolidating Taz with Meridian
in California’s Central Coast

Overall it is expected that approximately 300 further positions will be made
redundant, some during FO9 and others as systems and process change permit

3. Capability - “build a high-performance culture”

L ]

New senior management leadership in Australia and Americas within the
separate Wine divisional structure and increased accouniability

Transform Faster’s into a high-performance culture and better leverage the

aperational capabilities within the Company
Increase focus on succession planning to develop the next generation of
leadership .

A detailed implementation timetable has been developed during the course of the
Review indicating that the initiatives will be delivered over the next 18 months.

Management appointments

Foster's will immadiately restructure its divisional reporting structure consistent with the
separation of Australian Wine and BCS, and accordingly will make new appointments to
key management positions.

Alex Stevens has today been appointed Managing Director of Australian BCS. His
executive background includes 11 years with PepsiCo the last 3 being CEO, PepsiCo
Auslralia & New Zealand (refer to attached biography for more informafion).
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In the near future, Fosters intends to appoint a new Managing Director for the Australian
Wine business and a new Managing Director for the Americas Wine business.

Peter Jackson will continue as Managing Director of the EMEA Wine business.

Scott Weiss, who has led the America’s Wine business, since the Southcorp acquisition,
will be leaving Foster's.

The Ausiralian Wine and BCS business was previously managed by Jamie Odell who
leftthe Group in November 2008. : :

Financial impacts

Overhead, procurement and manufacturing efficiency programs are expected to deliver
net pre-tax cost savings exceeding $100 million per annum in F11. In addition, the wine
market opportunities identified by the Review have the potential to deliver additional
EBITS over the longer term.

The split of benefits betwesn Wine and BCS is relatively equal and the phasing through
to F11 is progressive. The benefits are net of the operating cost impact of other
initiatives such as sales force investment, efficiency programs, ERP systems
implementation, vineyard divestments and winery optimisation.

The separation of the Wine business and associated adjustment to overhead allocations
will result in an increase in Australian Wine overhead costs relative to overheads
recognised under the previous multi-beverage medel. Australian Wine overheads will
increase by an estimated $60 million per annum, and Australian BCS overheads will
reduce by a similar amount (i.e. BCS EBITS will increase and Wine EBITS will reduce).
Such overhead changes will have a partial impact in FO9 and almost full impact in F10
fallowing expected completion of the reorganisation by 30 September 2009. This
change has arisen as a result of the detailed work undertaken in the Wine Review to
understand the costs of unning the Australian Wine business under the new
organisational model.

Going forward, Foster's will report the financial resuits of Wine and BCS separatety.
The Australian Wine tail brands to be divested and/or discontinued comprise 37 brands
in total which generated $60 million in net sales revenue during the year ended 31

December 2008 and had a book value of $53 million at 31 December 2008.

The Austratian and Californian vineyards to be divestad comprise 36 vineyards and

€.5,000 planted hectares in total with a book value of $243 million at 31 December 2008.

doos



4o RF

L

Mt A A e L R AP DECRELIARIAL DEPARTMENT  + SEC CORP FIN

As a result of these decisions, one off costs and write downs associated with
implementation of the Review findings are expected o be in the range of $330-415
million in FO9 ($130-1685 million cash and $200-250 million non-cash). An updated
estimate of these amounts will be brought to account in Faster's full year results for F09.

A detailed assessment of the carrying value of Foster's Wine assets has been
undertaken as part of the Review. No further impairment charges were identified in
addition to the non-cash write downs noted above,

Commenting on the financial impacts, Mr Jahnston said:

“While it is disappointing that Foster's is to incur these additional charges, the Review
has provided the platform to materially improve the performance and returns of the
Wine business. This will ensure that the value of the Wine business js maximised for
Foster's shareholdars under all future scenarios.”

The financial impacts of the Review are not expected to have any adverse impact on
Foster's financial position or credit rating.

An Investor Presentation regarding the Review will be held today and will be available
electronically through the Australian Stock Exchange.

Further information:

Media Investors

Troy Hey ) Chris Knorr

Tel: 461 3 9633 2085 Tel: +61 3 9633 2685
Mob: +61 409 709 126 Mab: +61 417 033 623

Boog
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ALEX STEVENS APPOINTMENT
I

|
Foster's has appointed Alex Stevens io the nefv\dy created role of Managing Director,
Carlton & Uanited Breweries, reporting to CEO . lan Johnston.

Alex's most recent Executive experience has :been with PepsiCo Inc., wherg he spent 12
years in both Australia and the US.
. i . i
His last engagement was as CEO of PepsiCo Australia, New Zealand and the Pacific
Islands, with responsibilities for all Beverage, :Food and Snack Units within those
Regions. These comprised Pepsi Beverages Australia and Pacific, The Smith’s
Snackfood Company, Bluebird Snackfoods New Zealand and Sakata Rice Snacks.
Qver his career with PepsiCo Alex has held ééveral senior roles in both Australia and
the US, in the disciplines of Marketing, Sales, Finance, Strategy and [T.

Before joining PepsiCo Australia, Alex was an Executive within the Corporate Finance
Division of Ord Minnett (now JP Morgan) and for a number of years was a quantitative
equity analyst at Dominguez Barry Samue! Montague (now UBS).

|
He has previously been a member of the Board of Perpetuai Ltd, 2 member of the
University of NSW Medical Faculty Advisory Boeard and also Chairman of Rosella

Brands Group, an unlisted beverage and food entity.

Alex joins Foster's from 17 February 2009,
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FOSTER'S GROUFP LIMITED
77 Southbank Bouwlevard Southbank Victerla 3006 Australia

Tel 6139637 2000 Fax 61 ) 5633 2002 www fostetsgronp.com

AEN 49 007 620 Ba6

FOSTER'S

GROUP
Inaplring Global Enjoyment

APPENDIX 4D

Half Year.Report
For the six months ended 31 December 2008

ABN 49 007 620 886

Results for announcement to the market

Extracts of the Foster's Group Limited results for the half yasar ended 31 December 2008,

Total oparating reverive

Net profit for the parled attributable to mambers

Dividends

Interim dividend
Previgus coresponding perod
Record data for detemining entittements (o the dividend

Other information

Net tangible asset backing

$m
up 2.5% to 2516.0
up . 3.2% to 411.3

Franked amount per

Amount per securily Security at 30% tax
12.00¢ 12.00¢
12.00¢ " 12.00¢

2 March 2009

$0.47 per share (2007: $0.55 per ghare)

Further information:

Chris Knerr
Tal: +61 3 9533 2685
Mob; 81 417 033 623
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Foster's Group Limited
Half Year Report
31 December 2008

Foster's Group Limited
Financial Report for the six month period ended 31 December 2008
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17 February 2009
NET PROFIT' AND OPERATING CASH UP IN FIRST HALF

= Net profit' up 4.5% to $411.1 million
= Operating cash flow pre interest and tax up 13.2% ta $691.9 milfion
v Interim dividend maintained at 12.0 cents per share

Foster's Group Limited (Foster’s) today reported a 4.5% increase in net profit’ to $411.1 million,
with earnings per share' up 6.5% to 21 .4 cents.

Cash flow remains excellent, with cash conversion up &6 percentage points lo 92.5% of
EBITDAS® and cash flow pre interest and tax up 13.2% to $691.9 million. Cash flow after
dividends was $155.9 million,

Net sales revenue increased 2.2% and earnings before interest, tax, significant items and SGARA
(EBITS) increased 4.5%. On a constant currency basis net sales revenue declined 0.8%, EBITS
declined 1.8% and eamings per share' increased 0.9%. There were no significant items in the
period.

"In the face of very unique global trading conditions, our balance sheet is strong, our madium term
funding secure and we continue to generats outstanding operating cash flows,” said lan Johnston,
Chief Executive Officer.

Beer, Cider and Spirits (BCS) in Australia, Asia and Pacific (AAP) continued to perform strongly
with beer net sales revenue in Australia up 6.2% and AAP B8CS EBITS® up 5.6% on a constant
.currency basis,

“We've seen a strong comeback in Australian beer with underlying volume up over 3% for the half
and we finished the year with around a 52% value share of the Australian beer market®,” lan said.

Wine tap line performance included share gains in key market segments in the Americas and the
UK and strong bottled wine sales growth in Ausfralia. However volume was impacted by the
previously announced decision to exit cask in Australia, the anticipated decline in Baringer While
Zinfandel following the January 2008 price increase and a one time disruption in the Nordics.
While negatively impacting volume, the exit from cask in Australia and the Beringer White
Zinfandel price increase have positively contributed to eamings. The disruption in the Nordics
includes an impact from the move to direct distribution that is expected to contribute positively in
future periods.

“Deteriorating global trading conditions are a challange in wine, with a switch away from the higher
contribution on-premise trade and consumers trading down on price™ lan said. “Our ability to win

Before significant items and SGARA (refer page 5)
Eamings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, significant items and SGARA (EBITDAS)

Underlying basis excludes the distribution of the Boags brand, asset sale profits and logistics
transformation costs fram the prior period.

Source Nielsen
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share gains in key market segments in the Americas and the UK and cur improved performance in
Australian bottled wine gives me real confidence in the future.”

Foster's retains a robust financial position with significant available liquidity. Interest caover was 7.9
times and at 31 December 2008, Foster's had cash balances of $296 miliion and $1.5 billion of
committed undrawn bank facilities. Foster's has approximately $33 million of short term bi-lateral
bank debt repayable within the next 12 months,

Net debt increased $648 million as eash flow after dividends from operations of $155.9 million was
offset by a $794 million non-cash impact from exchange rate movements primarily on US dollar
denominated debt. Reflecting the increase in net debt, gearing increased to 76.2%.

"Despite global wine challenges, our Group first half performance has been strong,” lan said. "Ve
are building a more accountable, adaptable and aggressive culture, we continue to take the tough
decisions and we are beginning to drive improving sales growth trends and win back lost share.”

AAP Beer, Cider and Spirits: In Australia Foster's beer volume and net sales revenue growth
improved through the first half. Foster's underlying® beer value share has sustained an improving
trend since August 2008°.

Pure Blonde continues to lead beer category growth? with net sales revenue up 32.2%. Carlton

Draught sales grew 10.5% and in December was Australia’s second largest reqular beer brand
behind VB iy value®.

Foster's further increased its market leadership position in the pramium domestic and intemational
beer categories with above category volume and revenue growth?,

Foster's continues to innovate strongly in beer and in the first half launched Pure Blonde Naked

Ale, the first beer launched as a low carb alternative in the mid-strength category, Carlton Natural
Blonde and craft beers Fat Yak and Sebastian.

Global Wine: In key wine markets the category has remained in growth, however it has moderated
and mix trends have generally been unfavourable. Global wine EBITS increased 10.6% to $242.3
million with the benefit from exchange rate movemenis partially offset by lower volume, negative

mix, higher cost of sales and increased promotional investment. On a constant currency basis
global wine EBITS declined 11.6%.

AAP wine: In Australia increased promotional investment and impro\;ed sales focus contributed to
5.9% botlled wine volume and 6.2% net sales revenue growth. Wine volume in Asia and the

Pacific was below the prior year and impacted by the ecanomic recessien in a number of key
markets.

Americas wine: Volume in the Americas declined 6.8% and constant currency net sales revenue
declined 3.5%. Excluding Beringer White Zinfande! volume in the Americas increased 0.3% and
specifically in the US increased 3.4%. Distributor depletions of Foster's wines, which provide an
indication of underlying performance, were ahead of shipments, US distributor depletions declined
2.2% with the decline in Beringer White Zinfandel the key driver. Excluding Beringer White
Zinfandel US distributor depletions increased 5.5% with depletions of the balance of the Californian
sourced wine portfolio up 8.1% and Australian sourced wines up 2.1%.

Beringer White Zinfandel volume was in line with expectations following the January 2008 price

increase. Eamings were ahead of the prior period and the price initiative has facilitated the
successful expansion of Beringer California Collection into multiple varietals.
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Eurcpe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA} wine: Performance in EMEA reflectad strong share
gains in the competitive UK market offset by lower volume in lreland and Continental Europe. The
volume decline reflects an impact from the slowing consumer environment and in the Nordics the
impact of the change in ownership of our distribution partner and Foster's subsequent decision to
move to direct distribution. Volume declined 8.5% and net sales revenus declined 10.3% on a
constant cumrency basis,

Strategic Agenda

Good prograss was made during the half against our near-term strategic agenda - to build volume
growth, gain value share, reduce business costs and build capability.

"We've focussed on getting the basics right, simplifying the business to focus on what really
matters - profitably making and selling drinks,” lan said. “We have begun to turn around sales
growth trends and we've taken back 1 percentage point of share in the Australian beer market in
the last quarter”.”- : ’ - :

Concerted effort has also been applied to capturing cost efficiencies across the group. There is
currantly a comprehensive review of Foster's business processes underway to drive efficiencies
and eliminate low-value adding activities. Improving sales capability — investing in excellence
programs and better aligning our sales force rewards with performance outcomes - is reaping
early rewards.

"We are already great producers of drinks, but a focus on continuous improvement is now driving
efficiency leading to cost savings and increasing quality delivery across our supply chain’, lan said.
“The early positive response to this work gives great encouragement.”

Wine Review

The Board completed its review of Foster's wine business and announced the outcomes today in a
separate release to the Australian Securities Exchange. Key initiatives announced today include
the operational separation of the Australian beer and wine businesses, the appointment of a new
and experienced ‘leadership tearn and the integration of supply activities, a performance
improvement program that is expected to deliver $100 million of annual cost savings in fiscal 2011
and the rationalisation of nan-core vineyards and non-core Australian wine brands.

These initiatives are expectad to result in restructuring costs and asset write-downs of batween
$330 million and $415 million before tax ($280 million to $350 million after tax) in. the second half of
fiscal 2009. The cash component is expecled to be between $130 million and $165 million and the
non-cash component between $200 million and $250 million.

The operational separation of the beer and wine businesses in Australia is expected to result in a
$60 million increase in overheads allocated to AAP Wine and a comesponding reduction in
overheads allocated AAP BCS. The increase in overheads allocated to AAP Wine reflects the
detailed work undertaken as part of the wine review and reflects cosis assaciated with a
significantly increased number of specialist wine sales, marketing and support roles. The
overhead changes are expectad to have a partial impact in fiscal 2009 with the full impact
expected in fiscal 2010.

Further information:

Media Investors

Troy Hey Chris Knorr

Tel: +61 3 9633 2085 Tel: +61 3 9633 2685

Mob: +61 409 709 126 Mob; +61 417 033 623
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FINANCIAL COMMENTARY
& Months te 31 December 2008 2007 2007
Reported Reported Chantle Constant  Change
currancy
$m $m % $m %

Net galas ravenue'™ 2,407.6 2,356.3 22 24286 0.9)
Australia, Asia and Pacific 503.6 5155 (2.3) 499.0 0.9
Americazs 117.3 983 193 132.1 (11.2)
Eumopa, Middle East and Alfrica 58.7 45,1 30.2 638.4 {14.2)
Carporate (16.4) (24.3) 325 (23.9) 31.4

EBITS™Y - 883.2 6346 48 675.8 1.9

SGARA 03 4.1 (82.7) 4.1 (92.7)

EBIT 663.5 6387 3.9 679.7 (2.4)

Met finance costs {(84.2) 81.3) 3.6 (93.7) 101

Continuing nat profit before tax 579.3 557.4 3.9 5898.0 {1.1)

Tax (165.3) (158.7} {4.2) {165.9) 1.0

Continuing net profit after tax 414.0 394.7 3.8 419.1 1.2)

Minarily Interests @n (3.5) 22.8 3.5 229

Continuing net prafit after tax and minority 413 395.2 4.1 416.8 (1.0)

interests (befare significant items)

Discontlnued operations trading resuit after tax - 12 (100.0) 1.4 (100.0)

Neat prafit aftar tax (before significant itams) 411.3 386.4 38 417.0 (1.4)

Discontinued operations significant ltems - 2.2 24

{nat of tax)

Net profit after tax attributable to 4113 398.6 3.2 419.4 (1.9)

members of Fogter's Group Limited

Net profit after tax (before significant items & SGARA) ~ 411.1 3935 45 4141 (0.7)

EPS (before significant ltams & SGARA) 21.4 201 6.5 M2 0.9

Reported EPS ' 21.4 204 4.9 21.5 (0.5)

Average shares (numbar - milllon) 19242 1,953.1 1,953

7 Refer recorciliabon to the Income Stetement on page 5

Exchange rates: Averape exchanga ratcs wed for profit and (055 purposes in 2009 ara: 5A1 = 3US 0,73€4 (2008: 341 = 3US 0.8676), $A1 = GEP 0.4485
(2008: SA1 = GBP 0,4285), Perlod end exchange rates used for balarce sheet Rama in 2009 are; 541 = SUIS 0.6317 (2008: 8A1 = 3US 0.877, $Aa1 = GAP

0.48 (2008: $A1 = GBP 0.4398).

Constant currency: Thiaughout this ragart constant cur ency assumes current and priof earminga of salf-sustaining foreign opertions sre trarmslated and

<(oss Dorder temsactions are (ranzacted ak cument yasar exchanpe ratos.
SGARA: Austrelan Accounting standard AASB141 “Agriculture’
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RECONCILIATION TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

6 Montns to 31 December Reference 2008 2007
Reported Reported
$m $m
Net salas ravanue Commentary - pd 2,407.6 2,256.3
Other revanua 1084 88.0
Total revenue Incoma statoment - p16 2,616.0 2,45656.2
EBITS Commentary - p4 663.2 8346
SGARA ' ' ‘ " 03 4.1
Profit from cenlinuing oparations before tax Incoma statement - p16 663.5 634.7
and finance costa
Tan Commeniary - p& (165 {158.7)
Income lax expense relating to continuing Income statamant - pi6 {165.3) (168.7)
operations
Dizcontinued operations trading resutt after tax Commentary - p4 - 1.2
Discontinued operations significant #fems after tax 22
Nat profit from discontinued operations Income statement - p18@ - 34
Net proft after tax befere significant bems and Commantary - p4 ’ 4111 393.5
SGARA
Discontinued operations significant items after tax - 2.2
SGARA post rax 0.2 29
Net profit atributable ta members of Foater's Income statement - p16 ) 411.3 3908.8
Gro(u}p Limited
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FOSTER’S AUSTRALIA, ASIA AND PACIFIC

& Months to 31 December 2008 2007 2007

Reparted Reaported Change Constant Change

Currency

Continuing Business pre sig n‘iﬁ::ant ltems sm m % $m %
BCS Velume (millions BL casas) 59.0 597 (1.3) 59.7 (1.3)
Wine Velume (million 9L cases) 5.7 5.5 3.4) 58 (3.4)
Total Volums {milllons &L casas) 84.6 85,6 (1.9 &858 (1.4)
BCS NSR , 1,2324 | 1,217 13 1,217.5 1.2
Wine NSR asd.Q 3455 25 3435 341
Total Net Salas Ravonue ’ 1,586.4 1,562.8 15 1,561.0 16
BECS EBITS ) ) 426.9 433.4 (.0 4185 18
Wine EBITS 777 82.4 (5.4) a0s 3.5
Totl EBITS S03.6 5155 2.3 4950 0.9
EBITS / NSR Margln (%) M7 30 . 2pts 320 {0.2)pts

Beer, Cider and Spirits / RTD

The Australian beer category performed strongly through the period and has benefited from
volume growth” and the continuation of positive price and mix trends. Foster's performance
- improved through ‘the half as initiatives to improve sales focus and new producls gained traction.

Foster's underlying Australian beer value share, which excludes the Boag's brand from the prior
period, has sustained an improving trend since August 2008'. Underying value share in

Decer‘r:ber quanrter was 52.2% and in the month of December value share was ahead of the prior
penod®. ' .

Underlying AAP beer volume increased 2.5% and net sales revenue increased 5.9%. In Australia
underlying beer volume incraased 3.1% and net sales revenus increased 6.2%.

Cider continues to perfonm strongly with volume up 16.5% and net sales revenue up 22.8%.

Spirits / ready to drink (RTD) volume and net sales revenue declined following changes to RTD
excise in fiscal 2008.

On a constant currency basis AAP BCS EBITS increased 1.8% to $425.9 million. On a constant
currency underlying basis AAP BCS EBITS increased 5.6%. The underlying basis excludes a net
$15.3 million nen-recurring benefit from the prior periad that included $17.8 million of assets sale
profits, $2.4 million in eamings related to the distribution of Boag's and $4.9 million of costs
associated with the transformation of the Australian logistics network.

AAP BCS mix adjusted unit cost of sales increased 4.6% and Foster's expects the fiscal 2009
increase to be within the previcus guidance range of between 4 and 6%.

AAP BCS EBITS was negatively impacted by exchange rate movements relating {o imported beer
purchases and packaging and other input costs.

Wine

Foster's continues to focus on the development of its premium bottled wine portfelio. In Australia
the gap between bottled wine category growth and Foster's perfformance continued to narow” as
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benefits were realised from the release of new varietals, increased marketing and selling
investment and improved sales focus.

In Australia bottled wine volume increased 5.9% to 4.4 million cases and net sales revenue
increased 6.2% to $289.2 million. The Asia and Pacific markets were impacted by the slowing
consumer environment and volume declinad 12.4% to 0.8 million cases.

Foster's continues to manage its exit from cask wine in Australia. Volume declined 43.1% to 0.4
million cases and Foster's expects (o complets the exit from this categery in February 2009.

Constant currency wine net sales revenue per case increased 8.7% and included a significant
contribution from mix and a benefit from selective price increases. '

On a constant curency basis AAP wine EBITS declined approximately 3.5% and included the

impact from increased investment in selling, marketing and promotional support and previously .
identified higher Australian vintage cosis.

FOSTER'S AMERICAS
6 Months to 31 December 2008 2007 . 2007
Reported Reportad Changs Constant Change
Currency
Continuing Business pre significant ltems s'rn sm Ya $m %
BCS Volums (millions 9L casas) 2.3 2.7, (12.9) 27 (12.8)
Wine Volurma (million 3L cases) 9.6 1032 (6.8 10.2 6.5
Total Vetume {millions 9L, cases) 1.8 128 8.1) 12,8 8.1
BCS NSR 28 3.0 (6.7 31 (9.7}
VVine NSR 5839 551.8 5.4 605.2 (3.5)
Tolal Naot Sales Ravenue 386.7 554.8 5.8 608.3 (3.6)
BCS EBITS 21 . 1.4 50.0 1.4 50.0
Wine EBITS 115.2 96.8 18.9 1307 (1.9
Total EBITS 1173 938.3 19.3 1321 (11.2)
ERITS { NSR Margin (%) 20.0 17.7 2.3 pts 21.7 (1. 7)ypts
Wine

The continuation of strong growth rates in Foster's Californian portfolio (excluding Beringer White

Zinfandel) and the retum to growth of Foster's Australian portfolic were the highlights of the
Americas performance. '

In the first half there has been an improvement in Foster's US in-market performance which
benefited from a stronger innovation program and increased investment in sales execution and
improved promotion planning. Foster's portfolio of domestic table wine retailing over US54 per
botlle (excluding White Zinfandel) has grown volume ahead of the market over the past § months
and volume share in the first half increased 0.3 percentage paints to 9.3%".

in 2 deteriorating economy the UUS wine category continues to show positive vatue, volume and
revenue per case growth®. However growth rates are moderating and mix has been unfavourable
to prior year with good growth in wines retailing under US$10 per bottle partially offset by softening
sales in wines priced over US$10 and a significant slow down in on-pramise sales.

@o1o
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Fosters shipments declined 6.8% with US shipments down 5.8% and anadian shipments down
13.8%. Excluding Beringer White Zinfande! shipments were up 0.3% and in the US up 3.4%.

Distributor depletions of Fosters wines, which provide an indication of underlying consumer
demand, were ahead of shipments.

US distributor depletions of Fosters Califomnian sourced wines (excluding Beringer White
Zinfandel) increased B8.1%. The Beringer California Collection varietals launched over the past 12
months, Meridian, Cellar No 8 and Chateau St Jean all grew strongly. Depletions of luxury wines
were below the prior year. - .

US distributor depletions of Australian scurced wine increased 2.1%. Foster's Australian sou_rced
wines benefited from the launch of new varietals and stronger merchandising and promotional
programs.

US distributor depletions of Beringer White Zinfandel declined 19.8% and were in line with
expectations following the January 2008 price increase. Beringar White Zinfandel eamings were
ahead of the prior period and the price initiative has facilitated the successful expansion of
Beringer Califormia Collection into multiple varietals.

On a constant currehcy basis net sales revenue per case increased 3.5% and included the benefit
of Berninger California Collection and Canadian pricing partially offset by the impact of mix,

EBITS increased 18.9% to $115.2 million and benefited from exchange rate movemenis. On a
constant currency basis EBITS declined 11.9% and was impacted by unfavourable mix and cost of
sales increases. The increase in cost of sales reflecls higher vintage costs for Australian and
Californian sourced wine and higher glass and energy costs for Californian sourced wine.

FOSTER’S EUROPE, MIDDLE EAST AND AFRICA

6 Months {0 31 December 2008 2007 2007

Reported Reported Change Constant Change

Currency

Contlnulng Business pra significant ltems $m $m % $m %
BCS Volumo {mlllons 8L cases) 0.7 0.7 82 a7 5.2
Wine Votume (million 9L cases) g 4.7 52 - (8.5) 5.2 8.5
Total Volume (millions 9L cases) 55 5.8 (6.8) $.8 (8.6)
BCS NSR 8.3 6.9 203 7.0 18.8
Wina NSR 228.2 2322 2.6} 252.3 (10.3)
‘Total Net Sales Revenun _ 234.5 239.1 (1.9) 259.3 (9.6}
BCS EAITS 8.3 42 97.8 4.5 B4.4
Wina EBITS 504 40.9 232 639 {21.7)
Tetal EBITS 68.7 451 302 68.4 (14.2)
EBITS / NSR Margin (%) 5.0 188 €2 pts 26.4 (1. 3)pts

Wine

Within EMEA Foster's performance in the UK remains strong with Foster's increasing its share of
the Australian category in the UK off-premise market to recard levels®. Growth in the {otal
Australian category in the UK has slowed with volume flat and average retail unit price growth
being largely driven by excise increases. Foster's volume in the UK increased 5.2% with new
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product releases contributing to share gains in the grocery channel and distribution gains driving
growth in the impulse channel.

Oulside the UK volume declined 28% and was impacted by a one time disruption in key Nordic
markets and the slowing consurmer environment.

In key Nordic markets the purchase of Foster’s former distribution parrer V & S Group by a
competitor disrupted trading and subsequently Foster's has moved fo establish direct distribution
capability in Finland, Norway and Sweden. The impact from the disruption and move to direct
distribution is expected to result in a one-time reduction in volume of between 0.6 and 0.8 million
cases in fiscal 2009 with approximately half of the impact in the first half.

On a constant currency basis net sales ravenue per case declined 2.0% primarily a result of
unfavourable sales mix as a higher parlion of first half fiscal 2009 sales were in the competitive UK
market.

On a constant cumency basis EBITS margin declined 3.0 percentage poaints to 22 3% with higher
vintage costs, unfavourable mix and lower volume offsetting the benefit from prcr period price
increases and cost savings from in-market packaging.

Beer, Cider and Spirits  RTDs

African and Eastern, Foster's joint venture company in the Middle East, continues to perform well
and has realised costs savings through licensed production arrangements in the Middle East.

FOSTER’S WINE TRADE

6 Months to 31 December 2008 2007 2007

Repurted Repollted Change Constant Change

Currency:

Cuntinuing Business pre significant Items Sm m S $m %
AAF VYalume {millions SL cases) : G.7 5.8 (3.4) 5.8 (3.0
Arnarlcas Volume (milllons 9L cases) 4.5 10.2 (6.8) 10,2 (6.5)
EMEA Voilume (milllons 9L cases) a.7 52 (8.5) 52 (8.5)
Total Volume {millians 9L cases) 19.8 21.2 {B.3) 21.2 (6.3)
AAP NSR 2540 3455 25 3435 3.1
Amaericas NSR 5839 8516 5.9 805.2 (3.5)
EMEA NSR 226.2 2322 Q8 252.3 (10.3)
Total Not Sales Ravenua 1,164.1 1,129.3 31 1,201.0 (3.1)
AAP EBITS T7.7 821 G.4) 80.5 (3.5
Americas EBITS 116.2 95.9 189 1307 (11.9
EMEA EBITS 504 40.8 232 83.9 (21.1)
Tolal EBITS 243.3 219.9 106 2751 (11.5)
EBITS / NSR Margin (%) 20.9 195 1.4 ps 229 (2.0)pts
EBIT 243.6 224.0 88 279.2 (12.8)
Cash Conversion (%)} . 1124 1045 7.9 pts 38.8 236 pts

Volume of Australian sourced wine declined 5.1% to 13.4 million cases with the exit from cask wine
in Australia and lower volume in the Continental Europe the key contributors. Volume of
Californian sourced wine declined 10.5% to 5.7 million cases and reflects lower Beringer White
Zinfandel volume. . -
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Global wine EBITS increased 10.6% to $243.3 million and included a $55 million benefit from
exchange rate movements. On a constant cumrency basis wine EBITS declined 11.6%. On a
canstant currency basis wine unit cost of goods increased at the low end of the mid to high singie
digit gquidance range.

Wine Inventory

Foster's has made good progress on reducing the surplus wine inventory position identified in June
2008 and expects to have substantiglly eliminated the surplus in the first half of fiscal 2010,

Vintage Update

Industry grape production in the 2008 Californian vintage was 6% below the 2007 vintage®. Yields

_in the coastal regions were impacted by frost and heat. Overall the Californian industry is expected

to ramain in a balanced supply position.

The 2009 Australian vintage is currently underway. The impact af the extreme heat conditions
experienced in late January and into February has varied by region and varietal and is expected to

result in an overall reduction in yields. Foster's is currently assessing whether any additional
damage has been caused by smoke taint from the recent fires.

5 Source California Agricultural Statistics Service

ShLhbBELARIAL DEPARTMENT -+ SEC CORP FIN do1a
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CASH FLOW

& Months to 31 December 20086 2007 % Change
m sm

EBITDAS - continuing ' 748.4 711.8 5.1
Working capital change (31.0) (79.6)
Othe.r items (25.9) (21.0)
Operating cash flow before interest and tax . 691.9 611.2 -13.2
Net interest paid_ ) : ] {81.9) (83.2)
Tax paid (128.4) (72.4)
Net operating cash flows . 4B1.6 455.6 57
Net capital expenditre (51.9) 3z2.2
Cash flow before dividends 4297 457.8 {11.9)
Ordinary dividenda/distributions to minarities (273.8) (200.0)
Cash flow after dividends 1559 297.8 {45.9)
Reconcillation to the Cash Flow Statement
Contnuing Net operating cash flows before significants 481.6 4556 57
Discontinued business ' - (1.3)
Significant item cash flows in payments (7.8) (9.6)
ATC disputed tax payment - (244.5)
Net cash flow from operating activities 473.8 200.2 138.7

Foster's continues to generate robust cash flow.

Cash conversion increased 6.6 pa'rcentage points to 92.5% of EBITDAS. BCS cash conversion
was 86% and wine cash conversion was 112.4%,

Net capital expenditure was $51.9 milion an $84.1 million increase on the prior period that
included the proceeds from the sale of the Nurioopta and Seppelisfield wineries and properties
adjacent to the Abbotsford Brewery. Capital expenditure in the first half included costs associated
with Faster's global infarmation technology project and the purchase of kegs and ocak. Foster's
continues to expect capital expenditure in fiscal 2009 to be similar to depreciation.

The increase in cash dividend payments reflects an increase in dividends per share and the
satisfaction of Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) entitlements asscciated with the final 2008
dividend through the on-market purchases of shares. Foster's cumently intends to satisfy the
interim 2009 DRP entitlements via the jssue of new shares.

11
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NET DEBT AND INTEREST EXPENSE

Dec Dac %% Changa Jun % Changa
2008 2007 2009
$m $m $m

Greos borrowings 33675 3.160.4 86 25045 30.3
Debt issuance osts (20.7) (19.%}) 21.2)
Falr value adjustments to (hicd debt 2208 725 651
Borrowings per balance sheet : 3567.4 INIE 110 - 26294 35.7
Cash ) (296.2) {341.7) (133  (180.9) 84.1
Fair vatue of fed rate dobt hadges ’ (220.9) 719 (65.8)
Met dabt ' 3,080.3 258008 LX) 24027 27.0
Gearing (%) ' ' 762 629  (13.3)pts 624  (13.8)pis
Imterast Expanse ($m) (84.2) 81.3) {3.8) {(144.7)
Interest Cover (pre significant ltems) (tmas) 7.8 7.6 0.1 times 7.9 -

Exchange rate movements had a negative impact on net debt and interest expense. Net debt
increased $648 million to $3.1 billion as $155.9 million in cash flow after dividends was offset by a
$794 million non-cash increase in debt as a result of exchange rate movements. Net interest
expense increased 3.6% to $84.2 million.

Foster's uses foreign currency denominated debt to create natural hedges for assets denominated
in those currencies. Consistent with the hedging relationship the impact of exchange rate
movements on the Australian dollar carrying value of net debt has been matched by an increase in
the Australian dollar carrying value aof the foreign currency denominated assets.

In the first half exchange raie movements provided a net benefit to eamings as the positive impact
on EBITS exceeded the negative impact on intarest expense.

Foster's debt servicing ratios and cash generation are robust with interest cover of 7.9 times.

However reflecting the non-cash increase in net debt as a result of exchange rate movements,
gearing increased to 76.2%.

Foster's retains its long term BBB / Baa2 credit rating with a stable outlook and its current financial
position is well within applicable bank covenants.

Fasters gross debt at 31 December 2008 had an average matunty of 7.7 years, approximately
85% was denominated in US dollars and approximately 44% was at floaling interest rates.

In the first haif Foster's continued to actively manage its liquidity and as appropriate renegotiated
and extended bi-lateral bank facilities as and when they fell due. As at 31 December, Foster's had
committed undrawn facilities of approximately $1.5 billian and $296 million of cash. Approximately
50% of the committed undrawn faciliies have maturities beyond June 2010 and approximately
83% of the facilities are denominated in foreign currencies. .

Fosters has approximately $33 million of short term bi-lateral bank debt repayable within the next
12 months and no capital market or term bank debt repayable until the secend half of fiscal 2010.
in'March 2010 $300 million of Australian dollar denominated medium term notes will mature and in
June 2010 approximately $167 million drawn under a multi-currency term bank facility will mature.

12
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Foster's Group Limited
Directors' Report for the Half Year Ended 21 Devember 2003

The Directors present their report on the consolidated enlity comprising Fosters Group Limited and the
entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the half year ended 31 December 2008,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group during the period were the production and marketing of alcaholic
beverages.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The consalidated net prafit of the Group, afler income tax expense and minority interests, atiributable to
shareholders was $411.3 million, an increase of 3,2% on the previous corresponding period result of $398.6
million. Total consolidated Company net profit before minority interests was $414.0 miilion, an increase of
3.0% on the previous cormesponding period of $402.1 million. Net profit attributable to minority interests was
$2.7 milllon compared with $3.5 millien in the previous correspanding petiod.

Continuing operations net profit after tax attributable to shareholders was $414.0 million, an increase of 3.8%
on the previous comresponding period of $398.7 million. Tax expense on continuing operations was $165.3
million, a 4.2% increase on the previous corresponding period of $158.7 million. Net interest expense was
$84.2 million, an increase of 3.6% on the previous corfesponding period of $81.3 million.

There were no material items or discontinued operations in the current or prior period.

The prior period reported a discontinued operations segment which disclosed the results of the legacy Clubs
and Services business. '

Continuing operations earnings before interest and tax {EBIT) was $663.5 million, an increase of 3.9% on the

previcus comesponding period of $638.7 million. The EBIT contribution from each operating division was as
follows:

« Australia, Asia and Pacific EBIT was $504.1 million, a decrease of 3.1% on the previous corresponding
period of $520.2 millian.

« Americas EBIT was $117.1 million, an increase of 19.9% on the previous corresponding period of $97.7
million.

« Europe, Middle East and Africa EBIT was $58.7 million, an increase of 30.2% on the previous
corresponding peried of $43.1 million.

« Corporate division costs before tax were $16.4 million, a decrease of 32.5% over the previous
comesponding period of $24.3 million.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

On 17 February 2009 the Board decided on a number of organisational and operetional initiatives intended
to improve performance of the Wine and Beer businesses. The initiatives are expected to result in asset
write-downs and restructuring charges in the second half of the 2009 fiscal year in the range of $330 miilion -
$415 million before tax, comprising cash costs of approximately $130 million - $165 million and non cash
costs of approximately $200 million - $250 million.

Under the terms of the Long Term Incentive Plan 706,090 fully paid ordinary shares were issued during
January 2009 at nil cash consideration.

13
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" Foster's Group Limited

Directors’ Report for the Half Year Ended 31 December 2003

SHARES

Movement in shares during the period were as follows:

Number of

ordinary

fully paid
Movement in Consolidated Group Contributed Equity ghares $m

{million)
Balance at 1 July 2008 . 1921.5 34933 .
Shares issued pursuant to the Foster's Long Term Incentive Plan 02 -
Shares purchased by Fosters controlled entity pursuant to the . .
Foster's Restricted Share Plan - (2.4)
Balance at 31 December 2008 1,921.7 3,490.9

Under the terms of the Long Term Incentive Plan 192,824 fully paid ordinary shares were jssued during the
period at nil cash consideration.

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

The external auditor has provided a written statement that ne professional engagement for the Group has

been carried out which would impair their independence as auditor. The auditors’ independence declaration
is attached as part of this report.

DIVIDENDS

The 2007/2008 final dividend of $273.8 million (14.25 cenlis per cl:r(ﬁnary share) was paid on 7 October 2008,
No ordinary shares were issued pursuant to the dividend reinvestment plan as the requirement to satisfy
shares under the plan were purchased on market.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of 12.00 cents per ordinary share, no change from the 12.00
cents per share for the previous comesponding period.

CHRECTORS

The members of the Board of Directars of Foster's Group Limited who held office during the half year are as
follows:

David A Crawford Chairman

M Lyndsey Cattermole, AM

Paul A Clinton

lan D Johnston Chief Executive Qfficer

Graeme W McGregor, AQ (unfil 29 October 2008)
Trevor L O'Hoy (until 21 July 2008)

Max G Quld

Michael J Ullmer

14
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Foster's Group Limited
Directors" Report for the Half Year Ended 31 Decembar 2008

ROuUNDING

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/0100 issued by the Austrakan Securities &
Investments Commission, relating to the "rounding off® of amounts in the directors’ report and financial
report. In accordance with that Class Order, reported amounts have been rounded to the nearest tenth of
one million dolars.

This repori is made in accordance with a Resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behalf
of the Directors. . . .

Dated at Melbourne 17 February 2009.

David A Crawford ' lan D Johnston
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

AUDITORS' INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
TQ THE DIRECTORS OF FOSTER's Group LIMITED

Ag lead auditor for the review of Foster's Group Limited for the half year ended 31 December 2008, | declare
that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been;

a} no contraventions of the auyditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation
to the review:; and '

"b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the review.

This declaration is in respect of Foster's Group Limited and the entities it controlled during the period.

WAl

rew Mill Melboumne
er 17 February 2009
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Foster's Group Limited
’ Half Year Report

Income Statermment 31 Qecember 2008

Fosters Group Limited and its controlled antiies
ncome Staternant for the haif year ended 31 Decamber

Note Consoldated
2008 2007
$m Sm

Revenua 2 2,516.0 2,455.2
Caslt of sales {1,382.8) {(1,377.2)
Gross profit : ’ 1,133.2 1,078.0
Other incoma 2 74 283
Saling Expenses {202.9) (165.7)
Marketing Expenses ) ’ (181.1) (1758)
Administration Expenses (100.2) (113.8)
Other Expenses (18.3) {(17.0)
Share of ret profts of assaciates and loint ventures
accaunted for using the equity methad 9 54 4,5
Profit from continuing operatlons before tax and finance costzs 683.5 6387
Fiance meome 12.4 13.8
Finance cosls (96.6) (85.1)
MNet finance mcome/(costs) (84.2) (61.3)
Profit before tax frorh continuing opesations 679.3 557.4
Incoms tax expense refating to continulng oparations (165.3) (158.7)
Net profit from continuing operations 4140 398.7
MNet profit from discontinued asperations 3 - 34
Nat profif including discontinued operatlons 414.0 4021
Nat profit attriblable to minority interests 2.7y (3.5)
Nat profit attributable to members of Foster's Group Limited 4113 3086
Earnings per share for profit from continuing operations attributable
to the merrbers of Foster's Group Limited (cents) ) 214 20.2
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the marrbers
of Foster's Group Limited (cants) . 5 21.4 0.4

The Income Statemant should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

16



SO MM e A T A O GVl T AL S!:JCRET_ARIAL DEPARTMENT -+ SEC CORP FIN tHozo
Foster's Grotp Limited
Half Year Raeport
Balance Sheet 31 Dacember 2008
Foster's Group Limited and its controlled enthies
Balance Sheet at 31 December
Nota Consolidated \
Dec-08 Jun-08 Dec-07
$m $m Sm
Current assets
Cash and cash aquivalents 296.2 180.9 Nz
Receivables 1.232.6 1,099.8 1,346.2
Inventories 1,248.0 1,010.8 1,002.8
Non-current aszets classified as held for sale 19.5 382 783
Derbrative financial assets 12.5 1.5 34
Total current assets 2.808.7 23112 27723
Non-currant assets .
Racalvables 29.7 292 368
nventorigs 3640 383.6 4448
investrrents accounted for using the equity method 9 722 54.8 61.7
Froperty, plant and equipment 2,197.2 2,040.1 22008
Agricultural assels 334.2 2016 335.4
ntangible assels 3,068.2 27495 3,362
Deferred tax assets 452.8 377 2633
Derivative financial assets 220.9 66.4 71.2
Total non-current assets 6,729.1 59419 68,7759
Total assets 9,616.8 B8.253.1 9,548,2
Current liabilities
Fayables B29.7 7218 8222
Barrow ings 325 456 587.6
Current tax liabilties 98.2 1089 B3.6
Provislons 167.7 139.1 120.8
Llabilties dreclly assoctsted with non-current assets held for sale 9.8 234 354
Derivative financial llabditms 247 - 43
Total eurrent liabilitie s 1,160.4 1,038.8 1,653.9
Non-current llabilities
Payables 18.7 191 233
Borrow ings 3.534.8 25838 26262
Defefred tax labities 751.3 7247 756.4
Pravisions M5 B0 3”7
Cerivative financbl Eabilties 6.2 - 1.8
Total non-cursrent liabilities 4,384.8 3,353.6 3,443.4
Total liabilities 6,635.0 4,402.4 50973
Net assels 4.000.3 38507 4,450.9
Equity
Conlriputed equlty 7 3,490.9 34933 3,493.6
Reserves (306.2) {335.3) (256.2)
Retalmed profits 8 780.9 6635 1,183.7
Total parent entity intarest 3,59656.6 38215 44211
Mnority interests m controfied entilies a6.2 29.2 258
Total aquity 4,000.8 3.850.7 44509

The Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,
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Statement of recognised income and expenses

Aoz

Fester's Group Limited
Half Year Report

31 December 2008

Fostar's Group Limited and ts controlled entities

Statement of Recognized incoima & Expenses for tha half year anded 31 Dacerrber

Note Cansohdated
2008 2007
$m Sm
Total Fquily at the baginning of t’he perlod :‘i,EED.T 46332
Cash flow hadges (net of tax) {(15.2) (29
Net investment hedges (net of tax) {353.2) 39.5°
Share based paymens (1.4) 6.0
Actuarml gains/{losses) on defined benefit plans (20.1) 06
Exchange difference on transtation of foreign operations 383.9 (79.4)
Net income/f{cxpense) recognlsed directly in aquity 9.0 (36.2)
Profit far tha period ’ 414.0 4021
Total recognlsed income for the period 4230 365.9
Totai recognised income for the pericd i attributable lo:
- mambers of Foster's Greup Limited 4203 3624
- minority interesls 27 38
Transactions with equity heldors
- contributions (return) of aquity 7 (2.4) (119.3)
- dividends paid 5 (273.8) (427 .8)
- minority interests 33 (1-3)
{372.9) {548.2}
Total Equity at the end of the period 4,000.8 4,450.9

The Stalernent of Recognised |ncome and Expensas should be read In conjunction with the accompanyirg nates,
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Foster's Group Limited
Half Year Report

31 Dacember 2008

Fostar's Group Limited and i= controlled entiles
Slatement of Cash Flow s for the hall year ended 31 December

2008 2007
$m $m
Inflow s/ Inflow sf
{Outflows) {Outliow =)
Cash flow s from opearaling acthvities .
Receipts from customers 3.8100 3,276.4
Pay ments to suppliers, governmants and employees 13.125.9) (2,674.8)
nterest recaived 1.7 87
Borrow ing costs {93.6) {(92.1)
Income taxes paid {128.4) (318.9)
Net cash flow s (rom operating activities 4738 200.2
Cash flows Irom investing aclivities
Payments for praperty, plant, equipment and agricuitural assets (47.9) (477
Pay ments for acquisition of investrnents/other assets {56.2) -
Paymrents for lssue of loans (0.2) -
Net preceads lfom repayment of loans 0.7 22
Procaeds fromsale of non-current assets 12 77.0
Proceeds fraom sale of controlted entfias - (19
Net cash flow s from investing activities (61.4) 20.6
Cash flow s from financing aclivilies
Fay ments for shares bought back (24} {180.0)
Proceeds t;rom barrow Ings 1813 503.0
Repaymant of borrow ings {211.2) (125.0)
Cwidends paxd ] {273.9) (371.3)
Net cash flaws from Anancing activities {306.1) {173.3) -
Total cash Now s from aclivilies 116.3 565
Cash at the beginning of the perjad 1609 28745
Effects of axchanpe rate changes on foreign curency
cash flow s and cash balancas= 190 (2.3}
Cash at the end of the period 2982 37

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Non cash financing activity: Dividand reinvestment plan participation during 2008 was achieved through the on market purchase of
shares. tn 2007 dividend reinvestment participation resutted In 8,8 millian shares béing issued increasing share capital by $56.3 million,
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Foster's Group Limited
Half Year Report

31 December 2008

Nate 1 Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis af Praparation

This general purpoze financial report for the Intecim half year
eporting peried ended 31 Decomber 2008 has been prapared
in accondance with the reguiraments of applicable Accounting
Standards including AASE 134 “interim Fimancial Raporting”,
tha Corporations Act 2001 and all mandatory professional
reporting requiraments, The half-year fnanclal report has also
been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for derlvative
financial Instruments end agricultural assets, which have been
measurad at fair value. The carrying values of racognised

- assets and llabllitics that are hedged lems in Ric value

hedges, and are olherwisa carfied st cost, are adjusted to
recard changes in the flr value altributable to the risks that
are being hedped. ’

This half year financial report doas not inctude all tha notes of
the type nomally lneluded in an annual financial report.
Accordingly, this raport is to be read In conjunction with the
annual rapan for the year endad 30 June 2008 propared under
Australian GAAP, changes in aceounting policy fer accounting
standard requirements summarised below and any public
ammouncemants made by Fostor's Group Limited (FGL) during
the intatim reporting period in accordance with the continuous
disclosure raquirements of the Corperations Act 2001,

The Fnancial raport has been prapared for the consolldated
entity (alen rafarted to as the ‘Group’) comprising FGL as the
parent entity and all ils controlled entities. This report Is
presantad In Austrolian dollars, which is the functional and
presentation currency of FGL and its Ausiralian subsidiares.

Statemant of Complianea

This fnamcial report complies with Aystmlian Accounting
Standards, which includa Australian  equivalents o
International Financial Reporting Standamde (AIFRS).

Complianca vith AIFRS ensures that the halfyear Grancial
report, comprising the financial statements and nates,
compllas with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFR3).

Prior period Accounting Policy changse

The following change in accounting policy was implamented
for tha pafad ended 31 Decembar 2007 and is disclosad In the
comparatives.

Inventory accountlng Palicy Change

Inventory standamd coste were adjusted at 1 July 2007 to
harmonise bear and wine cosat treatment, by including certain
overheads previously expensed in the period into inventary
standarnds.

Inventory balances ware revalued upwatrds on 1 July 2007 by
52.9 million to reflect the additional costs In inventory with a
comesponding increase In net incoma. The impact on
Eamings Per Share of the change wes to Increase eamings
per share for profit attributable to members of the Fosters
Group Limited from 20.3 cants per sham to 204 cents per
share.

Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards

The Group adopted the following new and revised Accournting
Standards iesued by the Australlan Accourting Standards
Board (AASH) for the year ended 30 June 2008 that are
relevant to ita operations,

«  AASB 20074 “Amendmants to Australlan Accounting
Standards Arising from ED 151 and Other Amendments™  °

- AASB 2 "Group & Treasury Share Transactlons™
(rovised); .

The Group also clected to adopt the following aceounting

standands early for the yaar ended 30 June 2008:

) AASSB 3, “Busineas Combinations” (revised), and
*  AASB 127 “Consolidated and Separate Financial
statements” (revised),

There- has been no financial
accounting standards in 2008,

impact of adopling thosa

The Group has also adopted the folloving Accounling
Standards as listed below for the year ended 30 June 2008
which only impacted on the Group’s financial Statements with
raspect lo disclosura: '

= AASB 101 “*Presentalion of Financlal slatements”
(amendments to capilal disclosuoas)
. AASB 7 "Financlal Instruments: Disclosures”

Recantly lssued or amended accounting standards -

The following Australlan Accounting Standards have recontly
been issued or amandcd bul are not yat effective and have nat
been adapted for this annual reporting pariod:

AASRE 8 “Operating Segments”, issued February 2007 and
applicabie to the Group for the year commencing 1 July 2009.

AASE 101 “Presarmtatlan of financial stataments”, (revised)
issued Sepltember 2007 and applicable to the Group for the
year commencing 1 July 2009,

AASBH 123 “Borrowing Costs”, (revised) issued June 2007 and
applicabla to the Group for the year commencing 1 July 2009,

AASB 2008-1 "Amendmeants to AASB 2, Share-based
Paymemnts: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations™ iszued
February 2008 and applicable to the Group for the yoar
commencing 1 July 2009.

AASE 2008-2 “Amendments to AASB 132 and AASB 1:
Puttzhle Financial instruments and Obligations Arising on
liquidation” isaued March 2008 and applicable to the Group for
the ycar commencing 1 July 2009,

The Group has nal determined the financial Impact of adopting
the new or amended accounting standands.

Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting polcles appled by the QGroup in this
cansolidated imterim financial report are the eama as those

applled by the coneolidatad entity in lte consolidated financial
repott for the year anded 30 June 2008,
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" Fosters Group Limited
Half Year Report -

31 Dacember 2008

Note 2 Revenue, Income & Expenses

Consolidated
2008 2007
3m sm

Revenue
Sales Revenue from continuing operations 2,405.1 ] 2.34.4_
Royatlies 2.5 19
Nal S8ales Revenue 2,407 % 2.3563
Cthar revenue 10B.4 88.9
Total revenue fram continuing operations 2,516.0 2.455.2
Income
Nat profit on disposal of non-current assels 71 242
Net agriculture valuabion increment 0.3 4.1
Total incoma from contlnulng operatiohs 74 28.3
Depreciation - continuing operations {83.7) (75.8)
Amortisation - continuing operations {1.5) (1.5
Total dapreciation and amortisation - continuing operations (85.2) (77.3)

Net sales of aleoholic beverage products is after deducting excise and other duties and taxes of §1,036.0 million (2007: $1,035.6

mitlion).
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. . Half Year Report
Notes to the Financial Statements " 31 December 2008

Note 3 Discontinued operations

Wine Clubz and services

Sobamab, the European Wine Servicas business was sold in May 2008 for $8.9 million to Vintage Sad. This completed tha clubs and
Services divestment activity.

Australian Leisure and Haspltality

The Australian Leisura and Hospitallty Group (ALM) division was divested in November 2003, Cettain proparties which remained on
hand vare subject ta development conditions balfcre title could pass to the Austratian Leisure and Entertainment Property Trust. The
cummant period Discontinued Operations profit shown below pertains to ALH property settlernents.

There ware no operatiors of divested businesses in the cutrent periad. To cease ongoing disclosure of a Discontinued Operalions the

currert period ALH results have been disclased in lhe Carporate segment and es part of Continuing Operations in the Group's intome
Statement.

5 months 12 months 6 mantha
ended ended ended
Dec-08 Jun-08 Dec-07
$m $m 5m
Consolidated income statement information
Revenue - 38.0 19.3
Expenses . - (32.4) (17.3)
Profit before tax and finance costs - 36 2.0
Income tax expensa - - (0.8)
Froflt after tax from drscantihued operations ] . 3.6 12
Gain on sale before Income tax 5.6 21 1.4
Income tax expanse - 08 0.8
Profit after tax on divestment 5.8 29 22
Net prof@t from discantinued operations 66 65 34
Carrying amount of assats and abilitics
Man-current aggets classiflad ag held for sala 68 14.4 4247
Liabilities direclly associated with non-current assets hald for zale (7.8} (21.4) (34.0)
Net Assets * (0.9) (7.0) - 8.7
Consclidated cash flow information
Cash Fows related to Operating activitles
Recelpts fromcustomers - 389 18.4 |
FPayments lo suppliers, governments and employees - (32.4) {2D.7)
Nat Operating Cash Flows - 45 (1.3)
Cash Flows raelated 1o Investing activities
Payment for purchasas of property, plant ang eguipmant - (0.86) (0.3)
Proceeds fromsale of controlied entities - 78 -
Net Inve sting Gash Rows - 69 (0.3)
Net cash Rows fram activities - 11.4 .{(1.8)
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Foster's Group Limited
. . Half Year Report
Notes to the Financial Statements 31 December 2008
Note 4 Segmant resuits
Acquisition of
proparty, plant )
& equiprmont, Daprec@ton .
agricuitural and fecoverable
Total Total assels & atrortiation amount
aosets liablities Intargiblee expentn  write-down
sm m $m $m im
2008
Geagraphic segments
Australla, Asie and Pacific §,230.0 6377 3.3 8268 2.0
Amaricas 22235 252.8 12.6 17.8
Europs, Mddie East and Africa 761.7 64.6 0.9 14
Cantlnuing operatiors 8,215.2 9531 468 B1.8 2,0
Linalfoc ated
Corpgrata 5718 127.1 6.3 34 -
Cas hBorrow ings 2982 3,587.3
Deferred tax assetsftax pravisions 452.6 8g97.5
Canminuing operations 9,5358 5,535.0 53.1 5.2 20
Dizcontinued operakons - . - . -
Total apsratlons 9,536.8 55380 53.1 as8.2 20
2007
Geographic sagments
Auslrafia, Ast and Pacifk 558343 583.1 24.0 58,9 Caz
Americag 2,262.5 1906 103 135 .
Europe, Mddie East and Africa agz2 97.1 0.4 1.3 -
Contnulng operationa 8,490.0 as0.8 44.7 73.7 32
Unazlfocated
Carporata 410.5 1287 1.7 36 -
CashiBorrow ings 341.7 32138
Deferred tax assetsfax provisions 2633 840.0
Continuing oparations 950855 50633 46.4 77.3 32
Discontinued oparatiars 42,7 3.0 03 - -
Total operatlons 9,548,2 50973 48.7 773 3.z
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Foster's Group Limited
Half Year Report

31 Decamber 2008

Note 4 Segment results {continued)

Total Revenus Comprised of
Revenuc Net
inchuding nter segment Exterral Sakes Cther
nter-scgment sales revenua revenue Revahue revenue
$m $m $m $m $m
2008
Geographical segments
Australia, Asia and Pacific 1,980.5 (290.5) 1,690.0 1,586.4 103.6
Amoricas 594.7 (7.0) 587.7 (5867 1.0
Europe, Mddle East and Africa 249.4 {14.0} 235.4 2345 0.9
' 28246 (311.5) 2,511 2,407.6 105.5
Unalioc sted
Carporate 2.9 - 2.9 - 2.9
Net financa costs
Continuing oparations 28276 (311.6) 2,518.0 2,407.6 108.4
Decontinued o;-:erattons - _ _ . .
Total aperations 2,827.5 (311.%) 2,816.0 24076 108.4
2007
Geographical segm aents
Australls, Asia and Facific 20088 (3533 1,655.5 1,562.8 9249
Amrericas 560.9 (5.4) 5555 5546 [s K]
Europe, Mddie East and Africa- 2537 (13.8) 2399 23391 08
2.823.4 (372.5) 3,450.9 2,356.3 948
Unallocated ,
Carporate 43 - 43 - 43
Net finance coats
Continuing operations 2827.7 (372.5) 24552 2,356.3 g8.9
Discontinuad aperations 199 (0.6} 193 18.2 0.1
“Total operstiona 2,.847.6 (373.1) 2,4745 2,375.5 890

Tha Group operates pradaminantly in tha baverage industry, which includes the praduction and markeling of alcahalic beverages. The
interest rovenue and interost axpense hos not been allocatad across segments as the financing function of the Group is centralised
through the Group’s Treasury division. Inter-segment pricing i on an anm's length basls,

Othear revenue mainly includas saleg of non-aleoholic beveragas, sales by cepital lquor, hop extract sales and bip-resource revenua.
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Foster's Groyp Limited
" Half Year Report

31 Decemhar 2008

Nota 4 Segment results [continued)

Profit before
income tax Profl
and material Materia) before
terms temrs income fax
m $m Sm
2008
Geographical segmants
Australig, Asia and Pacific 504.1 - 504.1
Americas 1171 - 117.1
Eurape, Mddle East and Africa 58.7 - 58.7
879.8 - 679.8
Unallocated
Corporata {16.4) - (19.4)
Nat linance cosis (84.2) - {84.2)
Continuing oparations 579.3 - 5§79.3
Disconlinued operations - - .
Total operations 5743 - 579.3
X007
Geographical segmants
Australia, Asla and Pacific 520.2 - 5202
Amerlcas 977 - ar.T
Evrope, Mddle East and Africa 451 - 451
’ 663.0 - 663.0
Unallocated
Corparate (24.3) - {24.3)
Nat finance costs (81.3) - {81.3)
Continulng cperalions 557.4 - 5567.4
Discontinued operations 20 - 20
559.4 - 5594

Total operations

_ Corporale current perlod profit before income tax includes $5.6 million prafit from the seulamém of regidual ALH properties. Disclosure

of prior period divasted businesses in the Discontinued Operations sagrment has ceased in the cument perfod.
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Foater's Group Limited

. . Half Year Repart
Notes to the Financial Statements 31 December 2008
Nota 4 Segment resuits
Acquisition of
property, plant
& eguipmenlt,
agricuktural
Total assels & External
assels intangibles revenug
$m $m $m -
2008
Industry segments
Wine
Austraba, Asia and Pacific : 3,404.9 13.0 © 858
Amerlcas 219249 12,6 GHA.9
Eurape, Mddiz East and Africa ’ T4 0.9 228.0
5,321.2 26.5 1,171.2
Beer
Australla, Asia and Pacifie 1,935.8 20.3 1,331.7
Amrericas . 30.6 - 2.8
Europe, Mddle East and Africa 38.1 - 7.4
20043 20.3 1,3419
Unallocated
Corparate 4618 6.3 ©28
Cash/Barrow ings 298.2
Deferred lax assets/lax provisions 452.6
Continuing operations 9,535.0 53.1 2,516.0
Discontinued operations ’ - . .
Tote! operations 9,635.8 531 2,516,0
2007
Indusfry segments
Wine
Australia, Asia and Pacific . 40423 . 84 349.4
Amelicas 2,238.6 1C.3 5524
Eurape, Mddle East and Africa 2938 0.4 2329
6,574.7 20.1 1,1347
Beer
Auslralia, Asi@ and Pacific 1,7920 24,6 1,306.1
Americas 239 - 31
Eitrope, Mddie Eastand Africa 99.4 - 10
1,918.3 246 1.316.2
Lhallogated
Corporate 4105 1.7 43
Cash/Borrow nNgs . 3417
Oeferred tax agsetg/tax provisin 2633
Continuing oparations 89,5055 46.4 24552
Drscontinued operatians 42.7 0.3 193
Total operations 9,548.2 46.7 24745
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Foster's Group Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Half Year Repan
31 December 20C8

Note 5 Earnings Per Share

Consolidated
2008 2007

Basic earnings per share (cents) based on net profit from continuing operations
aliributable to rmembers of Foster's Group Limtted 214 202
Basic earnings par share (cenis) based on net profit fromdiscontinued aperations - 0.2
Basic earrdngs per share (cenis) based on profi altributable to merrbers of Festars Group Lirited 214 204
VWelghted average nurmber of ordinary shares on issue used in the calculation of '
baske earnings per share (in thausands) 1,821,596 1,953,032
Dituted earnings per share (cents) based on net profit from eontinuing operations '
attributable to rmembers of Foster's Group Limited 21.4 2.2
Diluted earnings per share (cents) basad on net profit from discontinued opsrations . - 02
Diluted earnings per share (cents) based on profi ettrlbutable to members of Foster's Group Limited 214 20.4
Whaighted average number of ordinary shares on issue used In the calculation of diuted
earnings per share {in thousands) 1,924,226 1,953,116
Comparatives have been restated to refiect the impact of bonus elemants of shares.
Farnings reconclliation
Basic earnings per share Sm m
Net proftt from continulng operalions 4140 398.7
Net profit attributabe to minarity mterests {27) (3.5
Net profit from eontinuing operations aliributable to mambers of Foster's Group
Limited used in caloulating basic earnings per share 4113 3652
Net proft from discantinued operations : - 34
Net profit aliributable o mambers of Foster's Group Limited used in calculating
tasic earnings per share 4113 3986
Diluted sarnings por share

' Nat profit from continuing operations 4140 2987
Net profit attributabie to minorlty interests ' 2.7) 3.5)
Net profit from continulng operations attributable to membars of Foster's Group
LirRted used in cakeulzling diluted earnings per share ) 4113 395.2
Nat profit fram discentinued operations - 3.4
Net proflt attributable to members of Foster's Group Limited used in caicutating
ditited eamings per share 1113 398.6
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Faster's Group Limitad
Half Yaar Report’

Notes to the Financial Statements 31 December 2008

Nate 8 Dividends

{ate interim dividand payebla Thursday, 2 April 2009
Record date for datermimng antlements - Monday, 2 March 2009

Registrable tansfers receivad by the Campany alt its principal ragister or any of its branch registers up
{0 5.00 pm on Monday, 2 March 2009, If paper based, or by End of Day on that date If electranically
transmitted by CHESS, will be registered before enlittements to tha dividend are determined.
Computershara Investor Sarvices Ply. Limited

Yarma Fallg :

452 Johnston Street

Abbotsford, Victorla, 3067

Australia '

2008 2007
sm $m
Interim dividend of 12.00 eents per ordinary share payable 2 April 2009 (2007: 12.00 ecnts
pet oidinary share paid 2 April 2008) 230.7 2306
Franking credits available for the subseguent year, - 768 5286
Dividerds during the perod were:
Paid in cash 273.8 200.0
Off-market share buy-back ' ' - 17143
Satisfied by the issue of shares under the dividend reinvestment plan - 56.3
Employes share plan loon rapayment - -
2739 4276

Amounl per security of foreign sourced dividends |s nil.

The abgve valua of franking credits available far the rermainder of the year represants the belances of the franklng accounts as at the
end of the perlod, adjusted for income tax payable and income tax refunds at 31 Dacember, Al the proposed dividends will be 100%
franked out of exlsting franking eredits or out of frankdng credits arsing fiom the payment of incoma tax [n the period subsequent to 31
December based. on a tax rate. of 30%. Franking credits expected to be used ta fully frank the Interim dividend are $99.0 milllon
2007:3101.8 million). The final dividend paid in the current and previous period ware 100% frankead at a tax rate of 30%.

The Company's dividend minvestiment ptan (DRFP) wag reactivated for the 1999/00 final dividend and continues to be available to
eligible shareholders. For the 200872009 interim dividend, new shares will be issuad at an amount which is basad on the daily volume
weighted avarage price for fdly pald ordinary shares sold an the ASX for an eight trading day period starting frem two days after the
record date. The last date for receipt of election notices for particlpation in tha 2008/2009 irtarlm dividend under the DRP is Monday 2
March 2009,

2B
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Fosters Group Limited

Half Year Raport -
31 Decembar 2008

Note 7 Contributed Equity

Consglldated
2008 2007
$m $m
Paid up capltal
ordinary fully pald shares 3.490.9 34938
Movermants in Share Capital
opening balance .
- ardinary fully paid shares ) 34933 36129
- erployee shares of §1 pakd to 1.67 cents - -
: 3493.3 36129
‘Shares pur¢hased by a Fostar‘s-con‘trolled entity pursuant ko the Foster's .
Resltricted Share Ran (24) -
192,284 (2007: nil) shares lssued pusuant to the Foster's Long Term
Incentive Pzn at nll cost - -
2007: 697 263 ordinary fully paid shares issued to employees $6.40 per share - 4.1
2007 Dividend reinvestmet plan: 8,832,202 sharas @ $6.37 - 58.3
2007 On-rmarket shara buy-back: 15,950,793 shares ¢ $6.27 - (100.09
2007 Cff-market share buy-hacic 42,956,371 shares @ $5.02 - (79.7)
Closing balance
- ardinary fully paid shares 3,490.8 3,493.6
- amployee sharas of $1 paid te 1.67 cents - -
Total Contributed aguity 3,490.9 3,493.6
2008 2007
sharas m shares m
Opening balance -
- ardinary fully paid shares 1,921.6 1,970.8
- partly paid ermployee shares 0.3 0.8
1,922.3 19716
192,284 (2007: nil) shares ssued pusuant to the Foster's Long Term 0.2 -
Incantive Fan et ni cost
2007: 697 263 srployee share plan Bsues - 0.7
2007 Dividend relnvestment plan: 8,832 202 - a8
2007 On-market share buy-backe 15,850,793 - (159}
2007 Off-market share biy-back 42,958,371 - (43.0)
Closing balance :
- ordinary fully paid shares 19207 1.5214
- partly pai enpleyee shares 03 08
19225 1,8222
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Foster's Group Limited
Half Year Report

Notes to the Financial Statements . 91 December 2008

Note 8 Retained Profits

Consolidated
2008 2007
$m Sm
Retalned profits at the beginning of the period 663.5 1,2124
Net profit attributable to members of Foster's Group Limited _ 4113 3986
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit superannuation plans {20.1) 06
Tota) avaiable for appropriation ; ' 1.054,7 1,611.3
Ordinary dividends final pald {273.8) (427.6)
Retained profits at the end of the perind 780.9 1,183.7

Note 9 Investmants accountad for using the equity mettwod

Cwnemship interest

Reporting date 2008 2007
0& %
Fiddlesticks L1C 31 Decembar 50.0 50.0
Fosters USA, LLC 31 March 43.9 499
Judd Road Vinayards Limited 30 June 50.0 500
International Trade and Supply Limited 31 Decemyer 39.9 39.9
Oak Vale Vineyard Limked 20 June 50.0 50.0
Tha carrying values of material investments are:
- Fosters USA LLC $30.4 milllon (2007; $23.9 million); and
- International Trade and Supply Limiled $41.3 million (2007: £36.5 million)
Note 10 Contingent Liabilitiea
Consalidated
2008 2007
$m m
Litigation — dispited tax assessments 288.8 2888
Guarantees — divastment wamaaties : - 316.2
Tarmination benefits - executive sarvice agreements 6.8 7.2
295.6 . 6122

Disputed tax azsesaments

On 29 June 2007 the Croup ecdived assessmant notices fram the Australian Commissionar of Taxation (the Commissianer) for primary
tax of §548.7 million and pemaltias and intereat of $302.0 million. The assassments are attibutable to tha 1955 to 2004 incoma tax
years and relate o the utilisation of tax losees associated with the funding of the Eldere Flnance Group (EFG) in the 19808 and 1950s.
Foster's is disputing these agsessments, Fostar's view of the positions adopted by the Commissioner Is that ite petential mendmum
exposure in relation to these and ralated asgessments is imited to $545.7 milllon, comprising $340.9 milllen for primary tax and 32048
milllan for penalties and interest The malter was heard in the Federal Court In June 2008 and is awalting judgement. The Group
remalns confident of the pasition it has adopted,

Fart payment of the disputed tax assessmente was required panding resolution of the dispute. The Group paid $244.5 million to the

Commissioner in August 2007 in mepect of the asseszments. This amount is fully refundable In the evant that the matter is resolved in
ravour of Fosler's. Thia amount has been recorded on the balance theet as a recclvable.
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Fosters Group Limited
. Half Year Raport

Notes to the Financial Statements 31 December 2008

Note 11 Recoverahle amount of Gash Generating Units (CGUs)

As at 31 Docember 2008, each CGU wab tasted to detarmine whether thare was any change In the recoverable amounts raported at 30
June 2008. The test Jor Impainpent involved an aseessment of whether additional impairmant exists, as well as any indicatlen that the
impaimment less recognlsed in tho prior period for apsats other than goodwill no longer exista or may have decreasad. The assassment
concluded that the carrying valuas of acsets remained appropriate and ha current period adjusimert through profit and koss was
requinad.

The Sroup's CGUS continuo to be:

. Austraita, Agia and Pacific Wine (AAP Wine)

- Australia, Asla and Paciflc Beer, Cidar and Spinils (AAP BCS)
. Americas

. Eurape, Middle East and Africa (EMEA)

Tha key assumplions used in detarmining rcoverable amount under the fir value {ess cosle to sell and value in use lasts are;
Discount rate - Future cash fiows have been discounted using a rate of 12 per cent (30 June 2008: 12 per cent).

Lang term growth rata - Cash flows bayond a five yaar period have been extrapolated ueing a growth rata of 3 per cent (30 June 2008:
3 per cent) The grawth rate doos not exceed tha lang term growth rate for the business In which the CGU cperates.

Excharga fate = The fair value less costs to sell CGU tests converted forecast foralgn currency cash flows at the exchange rate
expactad to be in place at the time of tha forceast transaction. Most forelgn currency cash floves are denominated in USD and GBP.
Tha recoverable amount test included a farecast USD exchange rate of $A1 = 0,69 praduating up ever a five year forecasi periad (3D
June 2008; $A1 = 0.96 graduating down over @ five year forecast petiod) and a GBP exchange rate of $A1= GBP 0.48 for 2009
gradualing down ovar a five year foracast peried (30 June 2008; $A1 = 0.49 graduating down aver 3 fve year forecast pericd).

Nata 12 Events subsequent to reporting date

On 17 Fabruary 2009 the Board decided on a number of organtsational and operational inftlatives intendad to imprave pefformance of
itz Wine and Beer buslnesses, Key wnltatives announced include the operational separation of the Australian beer and wina
businesses, the appointrant of a new and experienced leadarship team, tha Integration of supply activities, a performanca Improvement
program that is expectad to deliver 5100 milllon of arnual cost gavings in fiseal 2011 and the rationatisation of non-core vineyards and
non-core Australian wine brands. The initiatives are expactad to reault in asset wiite-downs and restructuring charges in the second
half af the 2009 fiscal year in the range of $330 million - $415 million bafore tax, comprising cush costs of approximately 5130 million -
5185 million and non cash costs of approximately $200 million - $250 milllon.

Under the lerms of tha Lang Term Incantive Plan 706,090 fully paid ordinary shares were issued during January 2008 at nil casgh
consideration. ' .
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Foster's Group Limited
Half Year Report
31 December 2008

Faster's Group Limitad
Directors’ Declargtion

The diractore declare that tha financial statements and notes for the consolidated antity:

a. comply with Accounting Standard AASB 134 “interim Financlal Reporting”, the Corporations Act 2001 and other mandatory
profassional reporting requirernents; and . - N

b, give.a true and fair view of the coneolidated entity's financial position aes at 31 December 2008 and of its performance, as
representad by the results of its operations and its cash flows, for the ha!f year ended on that data.

In the directers’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to belleve that the Company will be abla to pay its debts as and when thay
becoma duc and payable.

This report is rade in accordance with a Resolutlon of the Board of Directors and i signed far and an behalf of the Directors.

Dated at Melbourne this 17th day of Fabruary 2009,

Davfd A. Crawford lan 0. Johnston
Chairparson Chief Exacutive Officar
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PricewaterhouseCoapers
ABN 52 780 433 757

Freshwater Place

2 Southbank Boulevard
SQUTHBANK VIC 3006
GPO Box 1331L
MELBOURNE WVIC 3001
DX 77

Telophone 51 3 8603 1060

A 7 Facslmile 61 3 8503 1999
Independent audn_tofs review report to the members of Webaite sy, pa. Sormau
Foster's Group Limlited : . .

Report on the Haltf-Year Financlal Report

We have reviewed the accompanying half-year financial report of Fosters Group Limited, which comprises the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, and the income statement, statement of racognised income and
expense and cash flow statement for the half-year ended on that date, other selected explanatory notes and
the directors’ declaration for the Foster's Group (the consolidated entity). The consalidated entity comprises
both Foster's Group Limited (the company) and the entities it cantrolied during that half-year.

Diractors’ responsibility for the haif-year financial repornt

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of the half-year fin ancial
repart in accerdance with Austrafian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting .
interpretations) and the Corporalians Act 2001. This respansibility includes establishing and maintaining
internal cantrol refevant io the preparation and fair presentation of the hali-year financial report that is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the ¢ircunstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express a canclusion on the half-year financial report based on our review. We
conducted our review in accordance with Auditing Standard on Review Engagements ASRE 2410 Review of
an Interim Financisl Report Ferforrned by the Independent Auditor of the Entity, in order to state whether, an
the hasis of the procedures described, we have become aware of any matter that makes us believe that the
financial report is not in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 including: giving a true and fair view of the
consalidated entity's financial position as at 31 December 2008 and its performance for the half-year ended an
that date; and complying with Accounting Standard AASE 134 Intenim Financial Reparting and the
Corporations Regulations 2001. As the auditer of Foster's Group Limited, ASRE 2410 requires that we comply
with the ethical requirements relevant to the audit of the annuat financial report

A review of a halfiyear financial report canslsts of making enquiries, primarily of persons responsible for
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. It also includes reading

_the other information included with the financial report to determine whether it contains any material

inconsistencies with the financial report. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accardance with Australian Auditing Standards and consequently does not enable us to obtain azsurance that
we would bacome aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinien.

For further explanation of a review, visit our website http:lfwww.pwc.con-nlaulﬁnancialstatemeniaudit.

Liability timited by a schame approved under Professioral Standands Leglation
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PRICEAATERHOUSE(QOPERS

Independent audltor’s review report to the members of
Foster's Group Limited (continued)

While we considered the effectiveness of management's intemal contrals over financial reporting when
detarmining the nature and extont of our procedures, our review was not deslgned 1o provide assurance on
internal controls,

Our review did rot involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by directors or
management : :

independerice

In conducting our review, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Cosporations Act
2001,

Conclusion

Based on our raview, which is not an audit, we have not become aware of any matter that makes us believe

that the half-year financial report of Foster's Group Limited is not in accardance with the Corporations Act
2001 including:

(a) giving a true and fair view of the consolidaled entity's financlal position a5 at 31 December 2008 and of
its performance for the half-year ended on that date, and

(b) complying with Accounting Standard AASBE 134 Interim Financial Réporﬁng and Corporations
Regulations 2001.

?.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

M,

Antrew Mill ' 17 February 2009
ner Melboume
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FOSTER'S

GROUP

ASX RELEASE

The following release was made to the
Australian Securities Exchange Limited today:

#2009 Interim Results Preséntation”
Released: 17 February 2009

Pages: 21
{including this page)

FILE NO: 082-01711

If you would prefer to receive this notification by ernail please reply to

jane.dowsey@fostersqroup.com or
Ph: +61 39633 2105

FOSTER'S GROQUP

Goo1

77 Scuthbank Boulevard Sauthbank victorla 2006 Austratia GPO Box 753 Melbourne Victorla 3001
Tel 61 3 9633 2000 Fax 61 3 9633 2002 Foster’s Group Limited ABN 49 007 620 886 www. fostersgroup.cam
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Foster's Group 2009 Interim Results
17 February 2009

FOSTERS

ciaws

OUTLOOK STATEMENT
DISCLAIMER

foakdng alatemeants which may be syblect o eignificant uncertainties outalde
of Foater's contral,

Mo representation is mage a8 o the accuracy or retiability of forecasts
o {he asaumphors oh which they are tased.

bctieal titure events mey vary trem ihese foracasts snd you are cattoned
nat to place udue rellanca on any ferward looking ststemant.

Foster's Group Limited (Foster's) agvises that ihe follawing presertation contains farward

anair
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1H 09 RESULTS

AGENDA
10:00 - 10:55 Interim 2009 results presentation and
Investor Q&A seassion
11:00 -12:30 Wine review presentation and
Investor Q&A session
12:30 - 12:45 Break
12:45 -13:15 Media Q&A session
w2V

lan Johnston
Chief Executive Officer
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Cash flow pre
interest and tax

1H 09 RESULTS

SUMMARY
Volume -2.8% ; Net Sales Revenue
EBITS E-BITS Margin
Net profit® Eamnings per -share‘

$691.9m

- SEC CORP FIN

Dividend per share

Unkasy aifrerwisa atated, of figurss ane contiauing busineds datam signiicant ems and SGARA

Domestic
Premium :

+17.6% §

T

1.C 1 @R i Inesx before 2igni deme and FGARA G'V
AUSTRALIA BEER
SEGMENTS
Net Sales
Volume Revenue

= Streng growth from
T Carlton Dry Fusion
andg Grown Lager

i = Share galna!

Impor.ted +12.9% ] i » Strong portiolls
Premium P ) ! performance
- ="' Strong growth in Pure
H Blonda & Cariten
Regular +3.2% & +6.4% ! Draught VB ralsof
RDOI Lty decline slowed.
. = Improved
Mid i performancein
i Dacember quarter
‘ = Catepgory in dlcdine’
Light i Caecade Premium
Light performanca
sheed of category
1. Nigmen

A
| CATLION
{DRAUGH1

oo4
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AUSTRALIA BEER
INNOVATION

Excellent brvavatioh program

GLOBAL WINE

underlying improvements in key markets

e = In Australla good growth in bottled wim

»  Inthe US stare galne in Californian (ex White Zinfanaei) &
Australian wine!

= Intne UK mnpreased shane in the Aystralian catagory!

Encouraging
underlying

BERINGER

= Wolume down 6.3%, impacted y:
—  Gask exltin Ausbralia
«  Beringer Callfornia Collacgtion pricing
- Nordics ore-time dleruption
« EBITS up10.6% .

LINDEMANS

1. Miksn

- = :
. Results f
!
)

T S . W 3y g L PO

Sk Teasl dy

GABRBIANO
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GLOBAL WINE
ACCOLADES

Condnie o preduce wines of axcellent quality L

BERINGER *

SEC CORP FIN

“No mgfets’” declsions

CEO AGENDA

Build volume growth
and gain value share

H
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GROWTH -

Build vojuma growtn and value market shara

Bales exsellEncs pr:g.'ams
Sales

N Crear b ¢ K EL P aiEs,
effectiveness Clear e arrd kel pooie

Alérg]l]in:\'j IEENLIGES

New product
development

s Nordic ditel dishilaitn g
New market

development

A8l eanansion prying

v IR ttarn moghanghe ] In US

i K e e i oy T e S

EFFIGIENCY ' :

Do lowest cost producer

Slobsl review

" Querheads
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CAPABILITY

Buitd capabllides of ¥ stalf ins pired by top level loadership

Culture

- SEC CORP FIN

Angus McKay
Chief Financial Officer
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KEY FINANCIALS

Reparted Caonstimt
Cunenty Cutrency
1Ho9 Change Change

Volurme (9L cases) st.om -28% -2.8%
Net Sales Revenue ' $2,407.6m +2.2% ' 0.9%
ERITS $663.2m +4.5% .8%
Net Intarast Expcnse . ¥(B4.2)m +3.6% A01%
Tax Expense ' $(165.3)m. +a2% -1.0%
Net Profll aher tax? £411m 1a8% | Or%
Eaumings par share’ 2dp i 5% +0.9%
Waighted average number of shams 1,824.2m . 1.5% -1.5%

Unm=s amareie aletod, o 1GUGs are contling buldess tefor signfian A
1. Continuing ang discontnued bualness before sipndkean! M wid SGARA

AAP BCS’
KEY FINANCIALS

Beer net ales revenue up 6,2% In Austratia

Reported?

Constant! e
= Strong Australian beer category

= Volurne prowtn

~ Postive priée anda mix trends

Volume

+*1.1% §

P v L t)

+4.2% 3

iyt s o sl

+5.6% 3
.

N3SR +4.8% %

soparios nnrzn pid

= In Ausiralla Foster's beer volumm up 3.1%

and ri¢t $3)es revenue yp 6. 7%
— Improved focus
~ Produet Innovation

= Cider performed strorgy

F T AP R T PO R DY LT

» Spirits & RTDS geclined post exslee increase

I PPTRRT TN

1. Exaueng Soop's, Assst sele Govits and AustoiRn Logistics Trensionmerian costs : “ .

andir
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AAP BCS .
COST OF SALES

....... [ JYYTOIEs am-

[, *  1H 09 mix adjusted unit cost of sales up 4.5%
Cost of i ~ Gurrency
Sales 3 - Malt
— Hops
= Negalive exchange rata Impact on imported baer and ohier inputs
*  Fiscal 2000 mix agusted unit cost of aalkes ingrepaes expected 10 ba inline
with pravious 4 [0 63% guidance

o s Fare sy

= Infregtructure developmant and relocation activily completed |p Giscal 2008
?.us‘{:t.lil:: ~  DNew netwark perfanméng in Tne with expactaliora
Qg .
Transformation 3 - Optimisation uncerway
*  Qustanding custemer service levels mainkined
= Sttong cuatomer 1ake up of single delivery capability

:

Trmee

FIN

GLO BAL WIN E
KEY FINANCIALS

Encouraging underlying treads, with share improvements in key markets

Reported Constant §' Ry R R T

, - mertz n the US and UK
Volume Gains In key seg n ;
. = Strong growth [n boltked wine In Austrana  :

NSR . Reported top kne Impacted by: i

— Cask exit in Austrang
: = Beringor Cadtfomia Callection pricing
~ Nordica one-time deruption ;
ie Repuned met salea revenue pot caoe up 10.0%
— Favgurzble mix in Australla i
— Barlryger Californla Colisction pricing
i «~ Curency benefit i
i EBITS grawin, cumancy benefit partially affaet hy‘
— Vintage coxn i

2 Higher giasa costa in Catfomia :
i lmtmﬁdnnﬂm[kgﬁmmglmmm i
3‘7
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AAP WINE
. KEY FINANCIALS

Reported ; Constant

AP

Strang growth in Australian bottled wine, volume up 5.9%

O R P Y PR

= Stromg growth In bottled wine [n Austrltas
— Velume up 5.9%
~ Netsales evenue up 6.2%

PR

= Expect to compléte cask axl In Australiy In
february 2008

» Asla Pacliic
— Yolume down 12,4%
— SoRaning markat concillons in Asia

AMERICAS WINE
KEY FINANCIALS

Encouraging undefiving trends in the US

Reported : Constant

pramts

» US shiprments cown 5.9%; Camacian
ehipments down 13.8%

* 43 giatributor deplelione ahead of
shipmemnie

- Callfeonian sourced wine (es
Eeringer White Zinfande)) up B.1%
— Australlan sourced wWine up 2.1%
— Barnger \White Zinfande! down 19.8%
— Total depietiona dawn 2.2%

» Beringer White 2infandel in [ine with
expaectations H

— Eamings ahead of the prlar year
— Surcessiyl exporsion of Betingar
Callforsia Colledtion ranga

E .4
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.EMEA WINE
KEY FINANCIALS

Continued 2hafe growth in the UK

Reported Constant = Strung growih and share gains? In tha UK

— Strong Innovation In the grocery chanmcl

Volume - g Inr 9 {
o v tan et — Salas Inveatmant In the impulse channal

NSR

-2.6% i* = Nordics Impactad by one-iime disruption

= V & S ownership change

— Eslapilshing divest dlabribulion capability
: — Ore-Ume flscal K09 Impact:

— Volume 0,6 — 0.8 millon cases

- EBITS 516 - 518 million

oy e i 4 b eme

PP RS PP T IS

= Stowlng corsumes ervironment
— Irefana
- On-premkae

pressraiesiesanasary masnnrien

@
FATEES

mnan

GLOBAL WINE
COST OF SALES

Mid to Ngn singla digit constant currency Inereases expected in fiscal 2009

s 1H D osnstant currency mix adjusted cost of sales up BpprExIMAlely 5%
—~ Higher v1r|l'age caets in Ausiralla and Catifornia
— Higher glass costs In Celiforria
«  Fiacal 2009 carstent currency mix 2dlusted unit cost of males increases
expacted (o te In ling with previous mid te high gingle digit guldance

+  Good progress on reducing bulk wine aurphss
» Expect to have belanced inventories In ftrat half fiscal 010

STHLT O TEV I = 2008 Califormian industry vintoge B% below pravious vimage!
Vintage = Firost ana heat impached cosstal region yields

o oot by b g

FATICUELIS = 2000 Australian Industry virtage currently undorway
Vintage = Racert Mea! and smoke talrt expacted (o reduce yialds

1. Cafernky Agriculun! Statistics Service

+ SEC CORP FIN
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CURRENCY SENSITIVITIES

Wine Group Profit
Selected ERITS Befora Tax
e vett i neanre e RNy . Sm S e
. Average 1H oa 1H'0D : i
tmpact on {AUDMUSD @B78 ¢ 7864 0g 86
FX 6h : ' :
! AUDMGBEP  © 4265 4488 I (3
) ; .
. Cthes , . iow7 o s
: : , .
. Total ' : ; 548 : .8
i ; |
: i 1HOS . Sensiliity | ,
: : N !
2r 03 j auDusD | 7884 | tg¢chenge | 332 ! 19
Indicative : . ' : .
LEVFTNICL g | AUDGER | 4480 . ipohange | 458 ! a4
T ... : j : e -

CASH FLOW

Cash flow remains outstanding

TITLLY

£l

1. Casp ComDInian i goffied ac Coslinuing duchces OCFAIT divided by E8ITDAS BP
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
AND DEBT PROFILE

Robust and stakte balance sheet
Interest Cover?

Debt Maturity

« Intereat cover 7.9x, Gearing 76%
- BBE/Baal (Steble Outiook) cradit rating

= Dabt porfoko 56% fixed, 44% floating rates
¢ Groes gett weighted average mmeMurity 7.7 yoars

1. Fro sgnficant Rems

$1.5 billion of committed unctrawn facities

S296 mition of cash

332 rrilllon DHtateral tank dabt gue within 12

wonths

N @atx capilal market or term laclides aF

maturing until 24 09
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Supplementary Information

FOSTER'S

GHD W

CONTINUING

tor-3ignificant Ecros)

BUSINESS RE_SI.I LT
1H aa 2H 08 FY o8 iH 09
$m $m sm sm
Valumer! B4.3 71.8 158.1 81.9
NSR 2,356  2,016.4 43727  2.0008
. EBITDAS 711.8 5084.7 13065 748.4
EBITAS ' 636,1 505.8 1,441.9 664.7
c8[TS 6346 5043 1,138.8 683.2
EBIT g28.7 502.1 1,140.8 663.5
Net Prafit 37 3181 718.8 414.0

Cantimting buaheza Dalore signficant tema
7 gL coges mANI

11
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EPS |
RECONCILIATION
1H oD EPS 1MW EP3
$m s sm £
ma";ﬂ;@:mmém ane SEARR) 2938 204 at1.1 21.4
Significant lems afar i’ Profit / (Lods) (2.3} ' -
SCARA after tax (28) (0.2)
—P;IBI proflt after tax . 398.8 204 411.3 214
“HD;.ﬂed Waighted Average Shases © 49530 1,924.2

W Shgnifeant tema inchede contifiulng material Kams,
damconmusd makrial #3M3 ond gaids oF [05393 on ais of disconthued operstions

rmai

CASH FLOW

CONTINUING BUSINESS

Continuing business OCEPIT, before Significant lams

a2 6851.8
Less. Slonificant Nems 9.5 7.8
Dizcontinued Oparztions a.1 -
Reparted OCFPITIN 6018 ea4.1
EBITDAS 711.8 748.4 51%
CCFPIT 611.2 601.9 (100.0%)
Cash Convarsion 85,0 p25 6.6pte

™ Stantery Oparatng Cash Flow pra Interpet Tox & Dhidands

"

dois
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CONTINUING BUSINESS FREE CASH
FLOW PRE SIGNIFICANT ITEMS

SECRETARIAL DEPARTMENT

+ SEC CORP

Free Cash Flow aner Dividarcds

1H 0B 1H 08

Sm $m

EBMDAS 711.8 7aa.4
Working Capital {79.6) (M.
Other itams (21.0) (26.5)
Cortinung OCFPIT bafore Significants 8112 891,89
Nat Irzerest Paid (83.2) (01.9)
. Tax Paid {72.4) (128.4)
Cantinuing Net Operating Cash Flows befora Sigrilicants 4556 4816
Nat Capex 3z2.2 (51.9)
Dividands Palat (200,0) (2?3.8_)
2878 1559

FIN

™ Exclude3 Mo dividend comp of Lka oF-markst shom buy.beck compieted an 15 OCloper 2007
.AUSTRALIA,
ASIA AND PACIFIC.
1H od 2Ho8 FY 08 1H 09
$m sm sn m
BCS Vokirme Se.8 311 110.8 $0.0
Wine Volume 5.9 49 0.7 6.7
Total Volume . 65.4 56.9 121.5 64.6
BCS NSR 1,217 1,050.7 22874 12324
wina NSR 345.5 Q07 6762 3540
Total NSR 11,5626 1,381.4 29440 1,586.4
BGS EBITS 433.4 46,8 780.2 4259
Wine ERITS 821 8a1 188.2 777
Total ERITS 5155 432.9 s48.4 503.6
EBIT 520.2 0493 504.1

4287

7 M erars mitons

iy
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AMERICAS
1Ko 2H a8
sm S
BCS Vaturs 2.6 27 53 23
wing Valume 102 7.8 18.0 9.5
Total Volume™ T 128 10,4 232 1148
BCS NSR ap a3 6.3 28
Wiz NSR 531.¢ 428,7 ) 9783 583.9
Total N3R 5546 30,0 9848 586.7
BCS EBITS 1.4 2.8 4.2 2.1
Wine ERITS 268.9 49.7 148.6 115.2
Total ERITS 86.3 52.5 150.8 17.3
EBT ar7 535 151.2 1171
R or cazas mittions 'a_
EUROPE, MIDDLE EAST
AND AFRICA
1H ™ 2H o8 Fr 02 1H o8
Sm m = m
BCS Valume 06 o7 13 0.7
WWine Valume &2 48 10.0 4.7
Total Vaturadh - 548 [:3] 11.2 55
BCS NSR 8.6 56 125 8.3
Wina NSR 2322 109 4 £31.6 720.2
Taotal NSR 23as1 x50 4444 2345
pCcS EBTS 42 5.2 9.4 8.3
Wine EBITS 408 370 779 S0.4
Tawl EBITS 451 42,2 87,2 j+1- W
ERIT 45.1 422 87.3 58,7

0 g cases mangns

dois
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Capeax

Fr 1H 03

sm m - %m sm

Volumet 21.2 17.5 38,7 19.8
NSR 1,129.3 9568 20861 1,164.1
EBITDAS 266.5 213 487.8 2658
EBITAS 7213 . 1741 3554 2447
ERITS 2199 1728 3927 2433
EBIT 2240 176.8 2946 243.6
201 59.3 70.4 25.4

9L casos mithna

V=

DEBT SUMMARY

Weignied average maturity ‘of gross
detn

1H 08 FY o8 1H ¢9

m $m Sm

Grogs Debt Grcs::. Botigvidngs 3,160.4 25845 R r A
Dabt Issuanca Costs (19.1) 1. [20.7}

Falr Valua Adustmert to Fixed Dett 725 86.1 220.8

Borrowinge per Balanoe Shest 32138 2.620.4 35674

Net Dabt Caah (341.7) (160.9) (296.2)
Fak value of Fied Rate Debt Hadges {71.3) (65 8) (220 8)

Mot Dett 2.800.8 29327 3,050.3

“Dabt Portfalle  AUD (hs) 11 201.1 301.1
- USD (Lig%) 2523.6 2,020.5 1,001.8

GEBP (GEP) 100.0 80.0 ,80.0

Cther (AS) 843 16.4 20.4

% Fixad - Gross Borrowings . BY% S52% 54%

T.4yrs 7.7 yrs B.0yrs

[@ots
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1H o’ 24 o8 FY 0B 1H 08
sm . %m m $m
Vatumetn 531 54.4 1175 62.0
NSR 1,227.0 1,059.8 2.286.6 1,243.5
EBITDAS 466.2 3920 858.2 4855
EBITAS 4351 355.0 7841 438.4
ERTS 4290 354.8 7638 436.3
EBIT 39,0 348 7938 4383
Capax 247 240 48.7 20.2
0 QI co==z milions aP
~ AAP BGS UNDERLYING
Repocted Assat underiying o9
1H o8 Bongs Sale ALT 1H a8 m
$m Profits tm
vaume™ 59.7 ‘1.4 58.3 59.0
NSR 1,217.1 (33.0) 1,182.1 1,232.4
EBITS 33,4 (2.4) (17.8) 49 4181 42589

(7 O, cQsoy mitions
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CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Geoaring Group Interest Cover

FRPRTY PRI

B LAGALLUI TS
samasavaerrEEsevis

oO=NWAhaaNODO O

THQS FY O 1HO7 FYo? 1HCA Frpd 1Hoa

 EBITS intere2t Cover, pre significants

K

© * DEFINITIONS

Exchwnge rals

Avemgn axchange iotes used for (refl and sz perpeoe In thg § months onded 1 December 20G4 ara: $A1 o EUT 0 7454 (2007
$A1 = 2US 0,8978), 3A1 > GBP 0.4488 (2007; $A1 = GEF 1.4245). Pead ond cachancge rulas uzea for belanca heel [leito ase;
FAT = SUS 0007 {2007: Eat = SUS 0.5770), Sal = GBP 0,4200 [2007: $A1 = GBF 0.4350).

Conatan Cumancy

Trroughout this pfesoialicn coRslanl CTENCY A3UMKs cument ond Erior pedod eomisgs of ef-sustaining foreign eperations are
Iranzinled nhd efoss hartdor transactioNs sra tmnsd¢lad al cwTent yeal oiciianga MieA

BCca .

Besr, Cider, Spkis / Reacty Ta Drink (RT0) entegory

Diaconiimmd Buzlnase

Tha diwoAfme Rl OF Wina Clube & Sondces wos trhpisicd i N=cal 2008, Residual Auieliun Loizure snd Hosphnlity prog ety
seiflement profis diecised In Carpamnte Iy Axcel 2003

Sloprfean Rvms

Sgndicant ltema Mclace confiuing matedel nerg, @scantmmd Matenat Rams end gNN3 o I@3en o Mic of dscorinued
aporstiens

EmT

Cantrurdng busihess camingn befors Inkerea, lax and signicont llerms,

EBRITH

Centnuing butinees eamings bofors Inerest, tax, Alaniicant tans and EGARA,

CRITDAS

Continuing business samings bafora IMerett, tox, dep ytiaatr ibchrd Nems & SGARA

Cortloulng busnyss QCFAT

Conlinuing businesa oparang cush 1ow befara cash MecEipts and payments pesocioted with significant Remx and ofher one-aff
Tarsactkis end triorte INlerest and lex, g

BAARM

AASE1A1 "Agriculura®,




24790 U8 08160 Falk 61 3 96d4d 7228 SECRETARIAL DEPARTMENT + SEC CORP FIN @ool

O

FOSTER'S

GROUP

ASX RELEASE

The following release was made to the
Australian Securities Exchange Limited today:

“Wine Review Presentation”

Released: 17 February 2009

Pages: 10
(including this page)

FILE NO: 082-01711

if you would prefer to receive this notification by email please reply to

jane.dowsey@fostersgroup.com or
Ph: +61 3 9633 2105

FOSTER'S GROUP

77 Southbank Bou'evard Southbank Victoria 3006 Australia GPO Box 753 Melbourne Victeria 3001
Tel 61 3 9633 2000 Fax 61 3 9633 2002 Foster's Group Limited AGN 49 007 620 886 www.fastersgravp.com
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Wine Review Outcomes

17 February 2009

d4spur

DISCLAIMER mg‘*

» Fosters Group Limiled (Foster's) advises that the faBowing prasentaton contains forward looking
statements which may be subjact te significant uncertaintiass outside of Foster's cantrol

» Nao represantation is rmade as to the accuracy or rellablity of forecasls or the assumptionz on which
thay ara basad

= Actual fultire evants may vary fram these forecasts and you are cautiened not to place undue reliance
on any forward looking statement
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KEY WINE REVIEW OUTCOMES : ol

Fostar's to rataln and reshape its Wine businass (net appropiiate time to sefl or demarge)

Wine and BCS divisions in Austratia to be separaiad and supply operations Integrated with
demand raglons

New and axparionced oparationnl leadership team in Wine and 8CS

Extenzive oporatienal performance Improvemant program Lo drive growth and aggrassivoly reduce
cosis in Wine (and the Group)

Australian tail brand rationalisation, vineyard divestmants and further optimisation of the winery
nebwork

® & €0 ¢ @

Estimated finsncial impact of outcomes and lnitatives:
— Nel pre-tax cost savings axceading $100 milion per annum in F11
= Transfer of appresdmately $60 million per annum of overhiead costs from BCS to Wine
— Ona-off wrila downs and reatnucturing costs of $330-415 milkon {(3130-165 million cash)

BACKGROUND TO THE WINE REVIEW : a'v

ety

= Unsatisfactary performance of the Wine business since the Beringer and Southcorp asquisition
= Comprehensivo mandale to roview all aspects of I;omefs Wina business

* Foster's Board has ovarseen the work conducted intamally by managoment through tha CEO

* Specialist axtornal advice ulilisad where requirad

= Revicwed independently by Gresham Advisory which has advised the Board

Resha ! tnar &
Busincss strateoy Organisatinnal structure esh ncl:.r:;-émn- g

iMovmmania

rgdﬂl
- alain
Where w How tp Spua Telanl L Dhvwa/R
rowth armr- * D
Maviet G ‘l ompete | campete Ora. i i . km‘:"
srecore || mocen l ultars . Arunces
” - o | N
Proc. i * g "]1
Petarm- - o penmolo S Bonat i . t
Suetre Conduct arce : P I « fraikaetion Oprr.lhun.ﬁl DNPIrovamen
«CRanze's 1 ‘eapnnt
| + Cupazibes Revigw SUsihesa o toemtfy
& Ex Y= P « Operating l ocRwtiteon| pataomance
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SUMMARY OF WINE REVIEW FINDINGS alr

Thare Is good long tarm growth prospects in most markets

Structural I3gues provida challengas

There are atractive sagmeonts where Fostar's (s reasonably well positioned

Fosters has a strong brand portfolio but has faited to keep peca with 3 dyramic market

Fogter's has underperformad, Winhae and BCS mquira dedicated focus (multl-bevarage model
ineffective), and thare are substentiat opstational improvement opportunities

GROWTH AND PREMIUMISATION TRENDS af»
Fontar's long-term value grawth Strong Ypremiumisaton” trend
expoctations for kay markets US example (pre economic downtum)
% P2 By vekie 3 year Nisloncal CAGR %6 frid 2008, retall volue growh by
prica paint
Ausratan
Batiza wi «5%
Warkel
ETT N a—— o
US\Wine
Mowket ekl
WK —eeeee - -
LK Wine
Merkot 3an
S
Conat
Emerging Fo10%
arges .
J T %0 304 B0 $1014 4 8%
R Fmlary Semartd : AG W alma LT Fas, Deog end Lo 13

ooy
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ATTRACTIVE SEGMENTS AND FOSTER'S POSITIONING G'V

» Foster's is well pusitioned with its business characterised as Tollows:

Strang exposurs in prerium segments; wall pesitioned In altraciive Lxuty sogrrenta

Frize points atbelt undenweight in the LS minimal exposurae to unalirsstive commarcial seaments (e
cdak and jug)
Varietal Overwsight L traditional heavier sty'e varnatats; opporuniy o ncreass exposlns o

lightar style and higher growth varietals

Sriain Ovarwaignt in Ausballan category; relatively balanead ln US gamastic; vnderweight in
amater, fastar growing eeuntriea of ongn

" Wall positioned In devalgpad new workd merketa and In amarging markats (particulary in
AsE)

Channels Mrang Sapesare 10 MHIBNWHe underesight in on-pramise and drect channeia

Strang brand portioko In prEMUM wine versus competitons with 4 degrec of cvernap In
Australlan globa) branas

T

‘compets:

FOSTER'S BRAND PORTFOLIO ) g

aude

Fogter's Wina NSR by Brand (F08, ASm)

Othr LS Diversified ponfolio of premium
e Songar v brands

Leading global super-pramum and
v luxury brands which ara well
supparted

v Opportunity to simplify Australlan
il brand portfolio

Qpporunity to Increase innovation
v and new product development
activity

Pentalds 14%
1%

Zcarca: fodery

@oos
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OPERATIONAL IMPROVEMENT OPPORTUNITIES fr

= Ezecution - Fosler's has underparformed versus competitors

a Multi-beveraga model - synergias In distibution and back office but limited overatl

e Salas - Increase sakes force facus, oMiciancy end offcctivenass: impreve preduct and
customer knowledge; improve pricing and prometional nffoctiveness

v . Innovatlon - prioritise and levarage market insight and superiar winemaking skits

~  Manufachming - reduce wasta and downlima, improve planning and accelarata
changeovars

v Procurement - implomant strategic seurcing, product spacification and expenditure policias

v Overheads - remove duplication, Increass individual accountability and progess afficiency

‘TRANSFORMATION AGENDA ' afe

= Execution has bean a key performance inhibltor and change is raquired

TNear term stratagy:
o Structurally separste the Wine and Beer businesses

9 Pursue 3 strateglc Imperalives
> Growth
> Efficiency
> Capahtlity development
o Meve from a functionally orientated business to an Integrated aperation

o Cyeats a performance-based culture

= Ta be daltvered by & new managemant taam

* Longer tarm sirategic options enhanced by proposad reorganisation and transformation aganda

goos
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CORPORATE AND MANAGEMENT STRUGCTURE Mng"

Eosivr’ % nraup

Auctraltan 8CS (e
revert [ ‘Carlion 3
wire Busingss ar rigs Urnica B reweries”

Wine business
O Identity to s
cstaemined '

Alax Stavens
Bppointed
Managing Direclor
of Ausiralian BCS
Australlan and
Amedeas Wine
MD= to b
appointed [n near
term

Bupply 1o be
relntegraled with
demmand reglons

e ~- %

AveManEnCmeA KEOCHSFSET i

L T A IS

HEEpATenCy arid, aocouhtahllltv

“GO TO MARKET" MODEL IN AUSTRALIA 5"-'

oh e = Align field salas teams by channel within Wine and BCS

P lafin
fl:'.lnl.f-(.‘f e * Neapen salas force understanding of customer business snd naeds
* Pravide on-pramise focua

v Increase in direct sales force numbers of ~25%
ENENEILLALE  * Improve customer covarage and servioe lavels
* Focus on 3ales execution

Supporting 4 Lgverage a shared sarvice model for other supportng functions

functions = Remowva approximately 140 non-sales represertative pasitions in Austmiia
salas and marketling support

ooy
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ADDRESSING AMERICAS PERFORMANCE

» Refine biand and channel stratagy planning
Execution = Re-angine o dales procasses
« Improve prcing and promolional effectiveness

wbdae

Distribution = Build deapar ahd more praductive refationships with distributors

sagments
- US domaestic market
- Super-premium and Juxury wine

Partfolio

» Re-waight portfolio over lime ard focus organisation on more atiractive

= Address ovorhead cogl base
Costatructure i L. .
» Optimige wineras and divast non-core vineyards

AT G

SiGainCant pefforaCa MpiGvemen i CApIELIDE

FUTURE STRATEGY

= implamant Ausiralian "go-to-rmarkat* model
» Drive salas axccllence program in tha US and Australia
Growlh * Placa emphasls on Asian growth '

* Focus on key brands end high value channels, and rationalise the tsil

* Priorhlze innovation to target attractive segmarts and mitigate exposures

» Re-ntegrate supply oparations wilth damand reglons

s Implemnent stategic sourcing initatives and procurement practces

= Capture manufacturing efficlencies through contihuous improvamant
« Simplify the omganisation snd taduce overhead costs

= Imploment singla ERP systam across Wina and BCS

s Scll non-core vinayards and optimee winary natwork

Elliciency

= Appoint new operational leadarship It Australia and Amaricas
= Develop snd ambaed operational capab]l!ﬂes

Cazpability * Create 3 high parformance cullure emphasising transparancy and
socountabilty

= Focus on sUccession planning

4
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS - 4

Cest Savings

Restructure
Cacsts

Qverhead
Realiceation

= Ne! pre-tax <o+t 2avings to exceed $100 millon par annum in F11

= Allows for addilional investment in sales fores resources and the ¢ost of
other iniiatives

= Fotal write dawns and restructuring charges in the range of
$330-415 mililon to be brought to account in H2 FOS

= $130-165 million cash and $200-250 million non-cash tams

« Transfer of approximataly $60 million par annum of averheads from BCS to
Wine resuling from structural sepamstion and shared service alocation

= Ma furthar Impaitment charges wera idantified

= Fimancial impacts not expected to have any advarsa Impacts on Foster's
financial position or credit ratlng

CLOSING REMARKS

vener

= Wine Reviow has focussad on performmance snd positioning over medium-long term

« Despite currant global candilions, Fostar's expects longor term growth trands te continue

» Clear and dofined strategy for Wine has been dewalopad

« Near lerm focuts to be an delivaring tha operational performance improvement pregram under the
new organisational struchura and leadership

= Progrosa has begun and immadlate improvamans are anticipated

Aoog
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Questions 3'7
FOSTER

END
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